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PART A:            GENERAL INFORMATION



1. PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL INFORMATION 

REGISTERED NAME:    THE RENAISSANCE THEATRE, Trading As

THE SOUTH AFRICAN STATE THEATRE

REGISTRATION NUMBER:     2001/004447/08

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:    320 PRETORIUS STREET

      PRETORIA

    0002

POSTAL ADDRESS:  P O BOX 566

      PRETORIA

       0001

TELEPHONE NUMBER:  +27 12 392 4000

FAX NUMBER: +27 12 320 0681

EMAIL ADDRESS:  admin@statetheatre.co.za 

WEBSITE ADDRESS: www.statetheatre.co.za 

EXTERNAL AUDITORS: AUDITOR GENERAL SOUTH AFRICA  

BANKERS: ABSA BANK LIMITED

COMPANY/ BOARD SECRETARY: N/A
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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AFS Annual Financial Statements

AGSA Auditor General of South Africa

BBBEE Board Based Black Economic Empowerment

BOARD The South African State Theatre Board, also known as the Council of The South African State Theatre

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CFO Chief Financial Officer

DAC The Department of Arts And Culture

DPSA The Department of Public Service and Administration

MANCO Management Committee

MTEF Medium Term Expenditure Framework

NT National Treasury

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

SA South Africa

SAST The South African State Theatre

SCM Supply Chain Management

SMME Small Medium and Micro Enterprises

TR  Treasury Regulations
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3. FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON
The South African State Theatre is pleased to present its 2014/15 Annual Report.  This report has been prepared by management and approved by Council.  This Annual Report is the 
first to be submitted by the new Council, which was appointed in December 2014 by the Minister of Arts and Culture.  Council assumed duties in March 2015 after being inducted at the 
end of January 2015.

The year under review
We are pleased to announce an overall performance against predetermined targets, as set-out in our 2014/15 Annual Performance Plan, of 76% for the year.  18 targets have been 
achieved, 7 partially achieved and only 1 was not achieved.  This represents an improvement in performance from 2013/14 of 4%.  SAST has performed consistently throughout the year 
achieving 73%, 76% and 81%, respectively in the 2nd, 3rd and 4th quarter.  Only the 1st quarter under performed with 42%.  Performance information substantiating this achievement 
was audited in the 2014/15 audit.  A clean audit report was issued on performance information confirming our achievement of predetermined targets.  An improved control environ-
ment, ongoing planning workshops and an integrated reporting framework enabled this achievement.

Partially achieved targets included Sponsorship Revenue, Facilities Rental Revenue, Décor and Wardrobe Revenue, Box Office Ticket Sales Revenue, Parking Garage Revenue, Audi-
ence Attendance and Complimentary Tickets issued.  Number of Tickets Sold was not achieved.  A critical introspection of operations is underway to establish reasons for this partial 
and non-achievement in these areas.  Outcomes will be addressed accordingly with corrective action to ensure achievement in these areas going forward.

An improvement of 2% from 132,081 in 2013/14 to 134,664 in 2014/15 was achieved in the number of patrons visiting our theatres.  This achievement may be attributed to new audienc-
es attracted by our new programmes; School Set-works and IndieSpotlight.

Overall, SAST was nominated for 31 Naledi Theatre Awards.  Our artistic highlight for the year was the production Marikana – The Musical.  This production was nominated for 13 and 
successfully won 6 Naledi Theatre Awards.

Continuing with our contribution to Nation Building, SAST created 1,660 short-term job opportunities in our In-house productions for the year.  1,069 of these short-term jobs were created 
in the Rendezvous programme, 361 in the main Artistic programme and 230 in the new IndieSpotlight programme.  These short-term job opportunities were created not only for per-
formers and artists but also for administrative, technical and support roles.

Although the performance target was not achieved, our efforts to secure sponsorships did produce valuable partnerships.  The South African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC) spon-
sored airtime on both its television and radio networks.  We continued into year two of our three year sponsorship agreement with City Property.  Other sponsorships came from various 
theatres, to which we in turn toured our productions, namely, Silent Voice and Hungry.
 
Financial Results
The 2013/14 financial year audit was concluded in July 2014.  We were very pleased with a clean audit outcome for 2013/14.  This represented our commitment to implementing strin-
gent financial controls after receiving successive qualified audit outcomes in prior years.

Unfortunately the 2014/15 financial year audit outcome resulted in a qualified audit opinion being expressed on our financial statements.  Property plant and equipment (PPE) and the 
aggregation of immaterial uncorrected misstatements were the two areas that the external auditors had identified non-compliance in, which resulted in the qualified audit opinion.  
The audit scope and methodology applied in reviewing PPE changed from the prior year which resulted in unexpected findings being raised in this area.  A root cause analysis is under-
way to identify problem areas resulting in the finding of immaterial uncorrected misstatements.  An action plan addressing these audit findings, to ensure suitable corrective remedies 
are implemented and to ensure long-term compliance with the PFMA and National Treasury Regulations, is being developed and will be implemented with immediate effect.

It is important to note that, in no other area of operations was there any occurrence of material non-compliance with the PFMA and National Treasury Regulations that contributed to 
the qualified audit opinion.
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Corporate Governance
Policies, procedures and operational controls have been reviewed and suitably updated during the year.  Through 
Compliance and Risk management, our control environment has remained focussed on ensuring good governance 
across all operations.  Regrettably, SAST had functioned without a Council for the period August to November 2014, af-
ter the previous Council term ended in July 2014.  This resulted in SAST operating without an Audit and Risk Committee, 
as well as, without an HR and Remuneration Committee, until the Fourth Quarter when these new committees were 
established.

The 2015 – 2020 Strategic Plan was prepared and tabled during the year.  The plan incorporated our budget for this 
period and set-out annual targets which will be rolled forward, based on performance, in our Annual Performance 
Plans.

Acknowledgements
We take this opportunity to acknowledge the Honourable Minister of Arts and Culture, Mr Nkosinathi Emmanuel 
Mthethwa, as well as the Acting Director-General for the Department of Arts and Culture, Mr Vuyo Jack.  The invalua-
ble contribution made by both old and new Council Members as well as by the Management Team and all SAST Staff 
is hereby recognised with due appreciation.

We are confident that the coming year will show a marked improvement as we go forward with greater attention to 
our control environment, fewer vacant and acting positions as well as a concerted effort to unveil the root causes of 
problem areas and address these with the implementation of suitable corrective action.  We are committed to the 
achievement of our mandate in support of Government’s goals to develop our country and foster a socially-cohesive 
society rich in values and culture.
 

________________________

Ms Barbara Masekela
Chairperson
The South African State Theatre
30 July 2015

MS. BARBARA MASEKELA
CHAIRPERSON
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4. ARTISTIC DIRECTOR/ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW
The South African State Theatre remains committed to the mandate of the Department of Arts and Culture, its Executive Authority.  We acknowledge continued funding of the bulk of our operational budget 
as well as for the funding of capital projects by the DAC to ensure the ongoing delivery of our mandate under the Cultural Institutions Act.

Artistic Delivery
134,664 patrons visited our theatres during 2014/15, attending a total of 727 performances in 137 productions.  In support of our audience development objectives, 15,831 complimentary tickets were provided 
to prospective theatre goers.
Our established Rendezvous programme featuring Jazz and Comedy continued in 2014/15 together with our flagship festivals; Youth Expressions Festival, Vavasati Women’s Festival and Mzansi Fela Festival.  In 
this year we introduced a formal programme focussing on School Set-works.  This was well received with 6,555 learners attending productions during the 4th quarter.
We also introduced the IndieSpotlight programme in 2014/15.  26 productions were staged for 2014/15 which attracted 11,416 patrons.  Featuring the best of South African and African artistic works, this pro-
gramme is set to become a firm feature in our annual calendar. 
Detailed information on our productions is included further in this Annual Report under the section Production Statistics.

Financial Management
Unfortunately we received a qualified audit opinion for the 2014/15 financial year.  We have now placed our focus on improving internal controls within our finance department and asset management to 
ensure that we receive a clean audit opinion for the 2015/16 financial year.
During the 2014/15 financial year SAST received operational grants of R45.028 million, capex grants of R20.051 million and self-generated revenue of R23.618 million.  A surplus of R20.240 million was realised 
in the 2014/15 financial year, as disclosed in our financial statements.  This was as a result of the Theatre receiving a capex grant of R20.051 million on 31 March 2015.  These capex projects are earmarked to 
commence in the 2015/16 financial year.  Overall our improved controls over budget management has ensured that we delivered our mandate within our operational budget for the financial year.
Although we remain dependent on our parent body, the Department of Arts and Culture, for our primary source of funding, we are focussed on improving our self-generated revenue through sponsorships, 
and an improved Marketing and Sales Strategy geared toward increasing ticket sales and attracting audiences to our productions.

Performance Information Management
We are pleased to announce a clean audit outcome of our performance information for the 2014/15 financial year.  This represents a second consecutive year of good governance, effective management 
and compliance with the PFMA and National Treasury Regulations.
Controls implemented in Performance Information Management ensure ongoing monitoring and evaluation of each operational department within SAST.  These controls focus not only on attaining predeter-
mined targets but also on the operational management of the budget, human resources, risks and the overall good governance within departments.
Underpinning performance management is a process of thorough documentation of supporting documents and information which substantiates reported performance.

Risk Management and Compliance
Our internal auditor’s contract term expired 31 March 2014.  Due to various supply chain challenges, this outsourced function could not be filled during the 2014/15 financial year.  We anticipate appointing 
new internal auditors during 2015/16. The lack of internal audit created a gap in our approach to risk management outlined by our Combined Assurance Model.  Nevertheless, SAST continued to ensure com-
pliance and risk mitigation through management, operational functions and external audit.  The SAST Risk Management Committee (RMC) met during the year to monitor, evaluate and ensure implementa-
tion of planned mitigation for risks identified and reported on our Risk Register.

Information and Communication Technology
2014/15 focussed on continuing implementation of the SAST Corporate Governance of Information and Communication Technology (CGICT) Policy and Charter, in accordance with the instruction from the 
Department of Public Service Administration.  CGICT has provided SAST with the framework and tools to implement effective controls within organisational ICT previously non-existent.  Furthermore, a strategic 
approach to ICT management is being implemented which provides for ICT to support overall business objectives.
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MR. AUBREY SEKHABI
ARTISTIC DIRECTOR / ACTING CEO

Human Resources
The creation of a single origination culture and climate guided by a shared common vision, commitment, honesty and 
pride is our fundamental drive behind our human capital strategy. A performance management system is in place 
and cascaded throughout the entire organization. This has enabled the organization to consistently plan, manage and 
measure performance. We have recently embarked on a skills audit to attract and retain relevant skills that will ensure 
achievement of strategic objectives.  
Opportunity for further training at Institutions of higher learning are accorded to employees to enable them to obtain 
formal credible qualifications. Succession Planning and career paths programmes are also being implemented.  The 
State Theatre policies were also updated and approved by Council to ensure compliance with relevant statutes. Health 
and wellness of employees play a vital role in the success and achievement of the strategic goals, therefore provision for 
medical aid subsidy is a priority for the financial year ahead.

Infrastructure Management
Maintaining the aging building becomes more of a challenge by the day, however, the maintenance staff are coping 
well.  Our maintenance manager, Mr. Japie Maritz, has been put on permanent medical disability due to illness.  An 
acting maintenance manager has been appointed, however, the department is also short staffed.  Human resources is 
in the process of recruiting the required personal.
Despite construction of the Women’s Living Monument, on the Lilian Ngoyi Square situated directly above SAST parking, 
parking income is steadily recovering now that construction is almost complete.  The parking garage will have to be 
repainted completely once the construction is done.  A capex request was put forward in the DAC UAMP to repaint and 
redo the lighting in the parking garage.
Despite the facilities manager’s efforts to get well-known producers to bring productions to SAST, due to difficult econom-
ic times, producers are going to venues where they can get financial support and sponsorship.  Although our theatres 
were well booked, the productions were mainly internal productions, and rental income was not derived from that.
Décor and wardrobe are experiencing the same economic pressure in terms of costume and prop rentals.
Our Stage Services department has done well throughout the year.  Not a single performance was cancelled due to 
technical faults.
We look forward to 2015/16 and affirm our commitment to good governance, compliance and budget management 
across all facets of the business to ensure that we deliver on our mandate in accordance with the regulations and finan-
cial reality within which we operate.

________________________

Mr Aubrey Sekhabi
Artistic Director / Acting Chief Executive Officer 
The South African State Theatre
Date: 30 July 2015
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5. PRODUCTIONS STATISTICS

5.1. Summary of Productions for 2014/15 
137 productions with 727 performances were staged during 2014/15 across all categories and genres.  In total, these 137 productions attracted 134,664 patrons to the theatre.  A diverse variety of 
performance arts disciplines were staged, including; Drama, Musicals, Comedy, Children’s Theatre, School Set-works, Ballet and Music.  We also hosted several industry awards productions as well as 
conferences and educational events.
Detailed production statistics are provided in the following tables.

5.2 Productions per Programme for 2014/15 

Main Artistic Programme

Quarter Production Genre Performances Audience

1 Exile  Drama 22 702

1 Amambazo  Musical 23 3,315

1 Hungry  Drama 20 1,675

2 Protest  Musical 17 1,692

2 Mating Birds  Drama 18 406

2 Forgiveness  Drama 20 420

3 Silent Voice  Drama 2 77

3 Marikana  Musical 20 5,056

4 Boogie Nights  Music - DJ & Hip Hop band 1 139

4 Leviticus  Drama 9 352

TOTALS 10 152 13,834

PAGE 14



IndieSpotlight Programme

Quarter Programme Genre Performances Audience
1 Smaarties Drama 11 334

1 Next Sunday Drama 12 321

1 Silent Drama 8 190

2 MzansIndia Dance 5 179

2 A Room full of Women Drama 7 286

2 What`s That Sound Musical 6 563

2 Kweku Ananse - The Spider Children's Theatre 6 888

2 Virtuoso Fashion & Shows 1 120

2 Nqobile Drama 3 17

2 Kutu The Evolution of Khoi-San Drama 1 38

3 MzansiIndia Dance 1 10

3 Poet o’ Type as the Prototype Drama 10 321

3 Happy Drama 4 117

3 The Legend of Africa Music - African Drumming 8 23

3 Another Time Drama 3 68

3 A Crowd Drama 10 292

3 Comrade Babbel Drama 9 232

3 Limpopo The Musical Musical 9 510

3 Afflecktion Drama 10 162

3 Griot Musical 6 94

3 Anna K Dance 5 162

3 Meze Mira and Make up Comedy 9 463

4 Making Mandela Drama 17 1,829

4 Music of Queen Music 14 2,385

4 Call us Crazy Drama 13 738

4 Township Funeral Drama 11 1,074

TOTALS 26 199 11,416
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Rendezvous Programme

Quarter Programme Genre Performances Audience

1 Jazz Music 9 791

1 Comedy Comedy 6 380

1 Precinct* Music 9 0

2 Jazz Music 9 769

2 Comedy Comedy 6 322

2 Precinct* Music 6 0

3 Jazz (including Lira during Mzansi Fela) Music 7 1,091

3 Comedy Comedy 5 631

3 Precinct* Music 9 0

4 Jazz Music 6 429

4 Comedy Comedy 4 606

4 Precinct* Music 9 0

TOTALS 12 85 5,019

* The Precinct programme is a free open air programme held at The State Theatre Piazza Square. Passing audiences come and go without tickets.

School Set-works Programme

Quarter Programme Genre Performances Audience

4 Nothing but the truth (Set-work) Drama (School Set-work) 11 2,771

4 Animal Farm (Set-work) Drama (School Set-work) 8 1,163

4 Lenong La Gauta Drama (School Set-work) 10 1,657

4 Kudela Owaziyo Drama (School Set-work) 10 964

TOTALS 4 39 6,555
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Festivals Programme
Quarter Programme Genre Performances Audience

Youth Expressions:
1 The Muffinz Music 1 132

1 Gospel Fiesta Gospel 1 146

1 Roots in The Sky Drama 3 25

1 1606 Poetry 3 144

1 Eight o’ Clock Drama 2 32

1 Madam Pearl Drama 2 49

1 Waiting for Nelson Drama 3 20

1 Silenqa Ntoni Dance 1 3

1 Snyman Drama 1 1

1 Situation Culture Drama 3 42

Mzansi Fela Festival: 
3 Hugh Masekela Music 1 1,194

3 A Night with Morayks Music 1 99

3 Tormented Drama 1 1

3 Simunye Drama 2 19

3 Walk Out Drama 2 40

3 The Kraal Drama 2 36

3 The Secret Life Drama 2 11

3 LefeseBoss! Dance 2 36

3 Down Memory Lane Music 2 36

3 Artists in Motion - Hip Hop Music 1 1

3 Artists in Motion - Gospel Gospel 1 29

3 Artists in Motion - Jazz Music 1 17

3 Toilet Drama 2 75

3 So Help me God Drama 2 74

3 The Distance Remains Drama 2 58

3 The Hungry Earth Drama 2 32
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3 The Living Dead Drama 2 10

3 The Three Little Pigs Children’s Theatre 2 57

3 The Curse Drama 2 37

3 My Twin Drama 2 40

3 Shwele Bawo Drama 2 34

3 Sophiatown Drama 2 30

3 Have you seen Zandile Drama 2 41

3 Libuya Liyadla Drama 1 27

3 Brothers in Blood Drama 2 98

3 Stories Retold Drama 2 27

TOTALS 36 65 2,753

External Productions
Quarter Programme Genre Performances Audience

1 Shelela Drama 7 180

1 A Night with Vic & Ayanda Music- R&B & Soul 1 152

1 Mpho Bopape Live Gospel 1 94

1 Crown of the Russian Ballet Ballet 4 1,455

1 Absolute Dance Ballet 2 645

1 20 Year Gala Ballet 1 269

1 Droomkind Drama 32 23,450

1 Madiba African Opera Opera 3 1,182

2 Conversation With Myself Drama 3 73

2 Jhoomkaar - Let`s Dance Dance 1 632

2 Reik Na Die Sterre Die Musical Musical 27 10,193

2 By His Grace National Tour - PTA Gospel 1 245

2 Idols SA Season X Competitions 2 2,426

2 Stars of the Russian Ballet Ballet 3 1,098

2 Sonkringe Musical 2 2,658

2 Annual Tshwane Dance Festival Competitions 1 156
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2 Fame Musicals 5 3,265

2 Tshwane Youth Arts Festival Variety show 17 16,524

2 Tshwane Youth Arts Kaleidoscope Variety show 6 5,753

2 My Boetie se Sussie se Ou Comedy 14 2,212

2 Sentimental Journey Music-Jazz 1 270

2 Treasure of African Heritage Musicals 5 573

2 Tinqambhi Tava Tsheketi Gospel 1 63

3 Bang Bang Burlesque Dance 1 132

3 Dansa du Ventre Showcase 2014 Dance 1 260

3 Girl Power Comedy 1 39

3 Hello Ambassador Festivals 2 36

3 Hello Ambassador - 2day pass Festivals 1 57

3 Idols Competitions 7 8,657

3 Kutu The Evolution of Khoi-San Drama 1 15

3 Magical Mystery Tour Dance 3 242

3 On Point Dance 2 1,300

3 One Voice Opera 2 329

3 Opera Rocks 2014 Opera 2 904

3 Schoolboys Schooltime Comedy 1 276

3 Sentimental Journey Gospel 1 288

3 The Sleeping Beauty Ballet 5 2,470

3 TUT Annual Fashion Show Fashion & shows 1 407

3 Westend to Broadway Ballet 2 1,308

4 Money Like Water Book Launch Seminars & Workshops 1 186

4 Ayandastand Music- R&B & Soul 1 107

4 No Air Dance 2 367

4 Concert China Festivals 1 1,297

4 Goema Awards Gospel Music Awards 1 1,305

4 Mzansi Music Ensemble Music-Jazz & African 4 752

4 The Relationship I Desire Seminars & Workshops 1 178

4 Dance World Cup Competitions 3 607

TOTALS 49 187 95,087
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6. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report are consistent with the annual financial statements audited by the Auditor General.

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) applicable to the public entity.

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made in this information.  

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the 
performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 
31 March 2015.

Yours faithfully 

________________________ 

Artistic Director / Acting Chief Executive Officer
Mr Aubrey Sekhabi
30 July 2015

________________________
 
Chairperson of the Board
Ms Barbara Masekela
30 July 2015
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7. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

7.1 Vision 

To be the National Flagship for the facilitation of Socio-Economic development in the Performing Arts Sector.

7.2 Mission

To present an Artistic offering, of optimal quality, that integrates social and cultural diversity.

To provide development opportunities to emerging Arts Practitioners to learn and perform with the aim of becoming commercially competitive.

To provide effective Audience Development Programmes which will result in patrons supporting the economic objectives of the Performing Arts.

To maintain and upgrade our unique Theatre facilities to support our Artistic ambitions and our self-generating income objectives.

To optimize our facilities and offering to maximize self-generated income.

To comply with all relevant Laws, Regulations and Statutory Legislation.

7.3 Values

Transparency

Accountability

Freedom of expression

Honesty

Integrity

Excellence
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8. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES
The South African State Theatre is a Schedule 3A Public Entity under the PFMA.
The mandate as given to the public entity’s Accounting Authority by the Executive Authority is derived directly from the legislative mandate of the Department of Arts and Culture which in turn comes 
from the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act, 1996, including from the Preamble and Founding Provisions, and in particular:

Section 16 (1): Everyone has the right to freedom of expression, which includes:
freedom of press and other media;
freedom to receive or impart information or ideas;
freedom of artistic creativity ;and
academic freedom and freedom of scientific research”.

Section 30 “Everyone has the right to use language and to participate in the cultural life of their choice, but no one exercising these rights may do so in manners inconsistent with any provi-
sion of the Bill of Rights”. 
Section 32(1): Everyone has the right of access to:
any information held by the state; and any information that is held by another person and that is required for the exercise or protection of any rights.

LEGISLATIVE MANDATE  
On 1 April 2005, the former Minister of Arts and Culture Mr. Pallo Jordan declared the Renaissance Theatre a Cultural Institution in accordance with the Cultural Institutions Act, 1998 (Act 119 of 1998). 
The Renaissance Theatre is now known as the South African State Theatre. 
As a Cultural Institution we are established under the auspices of the Department of Arts & Culture and are then bound by the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA) as well as other 
applicable legislations. 
In the White Paper on Arts and Culture and Heritage, the following Acts have been promulgated by Parliament to create institutions in furtherance of the Constitutional mandate of the Department 
of Arts and Culture. The primary legislative framework of the Department of Arts & Culture emanates from the Acts listed below:
• Cultural Institutions Act, 1998 (Act 119 of 1998);
• Culture Promotion Act, 1983 (Act 35 of 1983);
• National Heritage Board Act, 1999 (Act 11 of 1999);
• National Heritage Resources Act, 1999 (Act 25 of 1999);
• Heraldry Act, 1962 (Act 18 of 1962);
• Legal Deposit Act, 1997 (Act 54 of 1997);
• National Arts Board Act, 1997 (Act 56 of 1997);
• National Film and Video Foundation Act, 1997 (Act 73 of 1997);
• Pan South African Language Board Act, 1995 (Act 59 of 1995);
• National Library of South Africa Act, 1998 (Act 92 of 1998); and
• South African Library for the Blind Act, 1998 (Act 91 of 1998).
• South African Geographical Names Board Act, 1998 (Act 118 of 1998);
• National Archives and Record Service of South Africa Act, 1996 (Act 43 of 1996)

POLICY MANDATE
Overall government’s mandate is derived from its Medium Strategic Framework and The Department of Arts and Culture has accordingly determined performance outcomes and policy drivers that 
would assist the Government in achieving its mandate.
The SAST has accordingly aligned its legislative mandate to the Department of Art and Culture’s drivers, outcomes and/or outputs.
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9. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

PAGE 23



PART B: PERFORMANCE         INFORMATION 



PART B: PERFORMANCE         INFORMATION PAGE 25



1. AUDITOR’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the per-
formance against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with any material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other 
legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.
Refer to the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information.

2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
Refer to the Audit Committee Report.

2.1 Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals

GOAL NUMBER OF 
INDICATORS ACHIEVED PARTIALLY 

ACHIEVED
NOT 

ACHIEVED
OVERALL PER-
FORMANCE *

Goal 1:   Stage In-house Performing Arts productions 2 2 0 0 100%

Goal 2:   Provide development opportunities for emerging Arts Practitioners in the context of our programmes 6 6 0 0 100%

Goal 3:   Generate revenue from commercial activities which includes Ticket Sales, Rentals, Fundraising and Front of 
House Sales 6 1 5 0 17%

Goal 4:   Ensure long term sustainability of Buildings and Assets 3 3 0 0 100%

Goal 5:   Develop Theatre going Audiences 5 2 2 1 40%

Goal 6:   Ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Regulations and Statutory Legislation 4 4 0 0 100%

 26 18 7 1 76%

* Total overall performance is calculated using the weighted average method. 69% 27% 4%

3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME
3.1. Programme 1: Administration
Purpose:  The purpose of this programme is to engage in commercial activities which ensure self-generated revenue to augment the Government Grant, to maintain and upgrade our 
  unique Theatre facilities in support of our Artistic ambitions and to ensure its long-term economic sustainability and to comply with applicable Laws, Regulations and Statutory 
  Legislation including the PFMA, the Cultural Institutions Act, Treasury Regulations and the LRA.

The programme aims to achieve the following SAST goals:

Goal 3:   Generate revenue from commercial activities which includes Ticket Sales, Rentals, Fundraising and Front of House Sales 
Goal 4:   Ensure long term sustainability of Buildings and Assets
Goal 6:   Ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Regulations and Statutory Legislation
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PROGRAMME 
STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

CODE

PROGRAMME MEASURABLE OBJEC-
TIVES

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR BASELINE

OPERA-
TIONAL 
PLAN

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVED 

2014/15

STATUS 
TO DATE 

(ACHIEVED, 
PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED, 

NOT 
ACHIEVED)

REASON FOR NOT ACHIEVED, PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED AND OVERACHIEVED

INTERVENTIONS THAT 
WILL BE PUT INTO 

PLACE

VERIFICATION 
DOCUMENTS

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS MUST BE READ IN 

CONJUNCTION WITH TECHNICAL 
INDICATOR DESCRIPTIONS 2013/2014

2014/15

(KEY OUTPUT - SMART) (UNIT OF MEASURE) ANNUAL 
TARGET

SPI1 Raise Revenue from Sponsorships 
and Donations Raise Revenue from Sponsorships and Donations

SPI11
Raise Sponsorship and Donor 
Revenue for Marketing activities, for 
the Development Programme and 
Special Projects.

Rand value of Sponsorship and 
Donor Revenue Received for 
Marketing activities, for the Devel-
opment Programme and Special 
Projects.

R3,337,000 R3,300,000 R 2,249,079 Partially 
Achieved

Slow start to approaching sponsors in the 
1st quarter combined with planned spon-
sorship that did not materialise during the 

year Resulted in non-achievement.

Structured approach 
to sponsorship being 

implemented.

Sponsorship /Do-
nation Contracts 

/Accounting 
System: Income 

Statement.

SPI2 Rental Revenue from the Immovable 
Property Portfolio Rental Revenue from the Immovable Property Portfolio

Goal 3:   
Generate 
Revenue from 
commercial 
activities which 
includes Ticket 
Sales,Rentals, 
Fundraising 
and Front of 
House Sales

SPI2a
Generate Rental Revenue from the 
SAST immovable property portfolio, 
i.e. Kilnerton, Office Blocks, Thea-
tres,Restaurants and other spaces.

Rand value of Rental Revenue 
Received. R5,794,462 R7,900,235 R 5,973,865 Partially 

Achieved

Lower than anticipated numbers in book-
ings for the Drama and Opera Theatres 

together with the lack of Restaurant Rental 
income Resulted in a significant shortfall in 

Rental income.

Theatre rental pack-
age offering created 
to entice producers 

to the Theatre.  
Lessees for restaurant 

to be sourced.

Accounting 
System: Income 

Statement.

SPI3 Rental Revenue from Décor and 
Wardrobe Hire Rental Revenue from Décor and Wardrobe Hire

SPI31 Generate Rental Revenue from 
Decor and Wardrobe.

Rand value of Décor and Ward-
robe Rental Revenue Received. R1,736,248 R1,837,812 R  1,499,893 Partially 

Achieved
Low market demand for Décor and Ward-
robe Range together with a lack of interest 

in Décor Rental bays.

Décor and Ward-
robe offering to be 
revised in line with 
SAST production 

requirements and 
market demand.

Accounting 
System: Income 

Statement.

SPI4 Revenue from Box Office Revenue from Box Office

SPI41 Generate Revenue from ticket sales. Rand value of Box Office Reve-
nue Received. R2,077,989 R2,197,272 R 1,913,618 Partially 

Achieved

Slow start in ticket sales at the beginning of 
the financial year due to lack of Resources 
undermined good ticket sales in the latter 
part of 2014/15 which ultimately Resulted 

in not achieving target.

Revised marketing 
plan to be imple-

mented in 2015/16 
to encourage 

consistent audience 
attendance.

Accounting 
System: Income 

Statement.

SPI5 Parking Revenue Parking Revenue

SPI51 Generate Revenue from the Parking 
garage.

Rand value of Revenue Received 
from the Parking garage. R8,864,616 R10,243,260 R 10,053,431 Partially 

Achieved

Loss of long-term and daily parkers due to 
ongoing construction of the Women’s Liv-
ing Monument on the Lillian Ngoyi Square 
directly above the parking garage which 
resulted in substantial portions of the ga-

rage being used to facilitate construction.

It is expected that 
construction will 
be concluded 

before the end of 
2015.  Clients will be 
reintroduced and 

new clients are being 
actively sought.

Accounting 
System: Income 

Statement.

SPI6 Front of House Revenue Front of House Revenue
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SPI61 Generate Revenue from Front of 
House sales.

Rand value of Revenue Received 
from Front of House sales. R2,092,450 R1,931,120 R 2,047,774 Achieved Good support from patrons for the Front of 

House bars.

Improvements are 
being planned in 
Front of House in 
conjunction with 

the introduction of 
restaurants.

Accounting 
System: Income 

Statement.

Goal 4:   Ensure 
long term 
sustainability of 
Buildings and 
Assets

SPB1 Theatre fit for purpose for next 
decade Theatre fit for purpose for next decade

SPB1a CAPEX projects, per UAMP. Number of CAPEX projects, per 
UAMP, completed. 6 12 12 Achieved CAPEX projects completed as planned 

for 2014/15.

Ongoing planning 
of CAPEX projects to 
ensure infrastructure 

sustainability.
Progress report.

SPB2 Maintenance Programme in compli-
ance with statutory regulations Maintenance Programme in compliance with statutory regulations

SPB21 Maintenance Programme to be 
implemented.

Status of Maintenance Pro-
gramme implementation plan.

Programme 
implement-
ed, progress 

reported.

Annual 
mainte-

nance pro-
gramme 

imple-
mentation 
complete

Annual 
mainte-

nance pro-
gramme 

imple-
mentation 
complete

Achieved Annual maintenance programme com-
pleted quarterly as planned for 2014/15.

Maintenance 
programme being 
improved to ensure 

efficiency and effec-
tiveness.

Progress report.

SPB3 Secure environment provided to 
Customers and Staff Secure environment provided to Customers and Staff

SPB31
Create a secure environment for 
both staff and patrons to ensure no 
incident of violence or crime occurs 
on the premises of the entity.

Number of incidents of violence 
or crime. 2 incidents 0 incidents 0 incidents Achieved No incidents of violence or crime occurred 

affecting staff or patrons.

Security improve-
ment protocols to be 
implemented during 

2015/16.
Security report.

Goal 6:   Ensure 
compliance 
with applicable 
Laws,Regu-
lations and 
Statutory 
Legislation

 Governance Governance

SPR1 Compliance with PFMA and Treas-
ury regulations Compliance with PFMA and Treasury regulations

SPR1a Achieve an Unqualified Audit report. Audit opinion (2013/14 Financial 
Year)

Qualified 
Audit report 

with emphasis 
of matter. 

(2012/13 Finan-
cial Year)

Unquali-
fied Audit 

report

Unqualified 
Audit report 

Issued: 
2013/14 
Financial 

Year

Achieved Unqualified audit achieved for the 2013/14 
financial year.

Significant improve-
ments are planned 
for the Finance De-
partment to ensure 
ongoing achieve-

ment of clean audits.

AG Audit report.

SPR7 Compliance with all South African 
Labour Acts Compliance with all South African Labour Acts

SPR7a Ensure Compliance with all South 
African Labour Acts.

Number of incidents of non-com-
pliance with applicable Labour 
Acts.

0 incidents 0 incidents 0 incidents Achieved
No incident of non-compliance with South 
African Labour Laws occurred during the 

financial year. 

Ongoing monitor-
ing of this area is 

planned to ensure 
consistent compli-
ance with applica-

ble legislation.

HR report.

PROGRAMME 
STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

CODE

PROGRAMME MEASURABLE OBJEC-
TIVES

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR BASELINE

OPERA-
TIONAL 
PLAN

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVED 

2014/15

STATUS 
TO DATE 

(ACHIEVED, 
PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED, 

NOT 
ACHIEVED)

REASON FOR NOT ACHIEVED, PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED AND OVERACHIEVED

INTERVENTIONS THAT 
WILL BE PUT INTO 

PLACE

VERIFICATION 
DOCUMENTS

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS MUST BE READ IN 

CONJUNCTION WITH TECHNICAL 
INDICATOR DESCRIPTIONS 2013/2014

2014/15

(KEY OUTPUT - SMART) (UNIT OF MEASURE) ANNUAL 
TARGET
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3.2. Programme 2: Business Development
Purpose:  This programme aims to stage the very best In-house developed and externally sourced Performing Arts work, to promote audience diversity and growth by implementing Audience 
  Development Programmes and to promote the outcomes of the government’s programme of action by creating job opportunities.

The programme aims to achieve the following SAST goals:
Goal 1:   Stage In-house Performing Arts productions
Goal 5:   Develop Theatre going Audiences
Goal 6:   Ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Regulations and Statutory Legislation

PROGRAMME 
STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

CODE

PROGRAMME MEASURABLE OBJEC-
TIVES

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR BASELINE

OPERA-
TIONAL 
PLAN

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVED 

2014/15

STATUS 
TO DATE 

(ACHIEVED, 
PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED, 

NOT 
ACHIEVED)

REASON FOR NOT ACHIEVED, PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED AND OVERACHIEVED

INTERVENTIONS THAT 
WILL BE PUT INTO 

PLACE

VERIFICATION 
DOCUMENTS

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS MUST BE READ IN 

CONJUNCTION WITH TECHNICAL 
INDICATOR DESCRIPTIONS 2013/2014

2014/15

(KEY OUTPUT - SMART) (UNIT OF MEASURE) ANNUAL 
TARGET

SPA1 Artistic Productions Artistic Productions

SPA211 Stage In-house produced Festi-
vals.

Number of In-house Festivals 
staged. 3 3 3 Achieved

SAST has firmly established 3 annual 
festivals that are well received and 

anticipated by audiences: Youth Expres-
sions, Vavasati Women’s Festival and 

Mzansi Fela Festival.

A 4th festival is 
being developed 
which will focus on 

scholars.

Computicket 
reporting system 

/ Festival con-
tracts / Festival 

budget.

SPA11 Stage In-house Productions. Number of In-house Productions 
staged. 35 15 59 Achieved

Large number of Productions staged 
during festivals have contributed to the 

significant over-achievement.

Diverse Artistic Cal-
endar to provide 

ongoing  range of 
Productions.

Computicket 
reporting system 

/ Production 
contracts / Pro-
duction budget.

SPM Marketing Marketing

Goal 1: Stage 
In-house Per-
forming Arts 
productions

SPM1a Establish media partnerships, 
increasing by 1 annually.

Number of media partnerships 
secured. (Non-cumulative) n/a 10 10 Achieved

Media partnerships secured to ensure 
the promotion of SAST, both through 
paid advertising and through Public 

Relations opportunities.

Improvement in this 
area to be imple-

mented through the 
revised Marketing 

Strategy.

Progress report.

 Audience Development: Audience Development:

SPS2

Report on Audience attendance 
for In-house Artistic and External 
Rental Productions.  Audiences to 
increase by 10,000 annually.

Audience attendance num-
bers for both In-house Artistic 
Productions and External Rental 
Productions.

132,081 191,287 134,664
Partially 

Achieved

Low number of rental productions and 
the changing economic landscape 

negatively impacted overall audience 
attendance during 2014/15.

A dual approach to 
audience numbers 

is being taken by re-
vising theatre rental 
options and by re-

vising the marketing 
strategy for in-house 

Productions.

Computicket Re-
ports.  Audience 

Attendance 
Summary.
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PROGRAMME 
STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

CODE

PROGRAMME MEASURABLE OBJEC-
TIVES

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR BASELINE

OPERA-
TIONAL 
PLAN

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVED 

2014/15

STATUS 
TO DATE 

(ACHIEVED, 
PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED, 

NOT 
ACHIEVED)

REASON FOR NOT ACHIEVED, PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED AND OVERACHIEVED

INTERVENTIONS THAT 
WILL BE PUT INTO 

PLACE

VERIFICATION 
DOCUMENTS

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS MUST BE READ IN 

CONJUNCTION WITH TECHNICAL 
INDICATOR DESCRIPTIONS 2013/2014

2014/15

(KEY OUTPUT - SMART) (UNIT OF MEASURE) ANNUAL 
TARGET

SPS2a
Develop paying Audience for In-
house Productions, increasing by 
5,000 annually.

Number of tickets sold for In-
house Productions.

n/a 50,000 23,746
Not 

Achieved

The changing economic landscape 
and rapidly diversifying audience de-

mands negatively impacted ticket sales.

Marketing strategy 
being revised to 
ensure audience 

demands are 
catered for and to 
attract audiences 
through relevant 

marketing platforms 
such as social 

media and loyalty 
programmes.

Computicket Re-
ports.  Audience 

Attendance 
Summary.

Goal 5:   
Develop 
Theatre going 
Audiences

SPS2b

Develop Audience for In-house 
Productions by issuing Compli-
mentary tickets, increasing by 
5,000 annually.

Number of Complimentary 
tickets issued for In-house 
Productions.

n/a 25,000 15,831
Partially 

Achieved

Slow progress in introducing corporate 
clients to the theatre through offering 

complimentary tickets.

Computicket Re-
ports.  Audience 

Attendance 
Summary.

SPC Patron Satisfaction: Patron Satisfaction:

SPC1
Conduct internal research surveys 
of patron satisfaction and needs 
analysis.

Number of independent re-
search surveys conducted.

4 2 2 Achieved
Research surveys conducted to improve 

SAST offering.

This will be expand-
ed through the 

revised marketing 
strategy.

Service Provider 
Research Survey 

Report.

Goal 6:   En-
sure compli-
ance with ap-
plicable Laws, 
Regulations 
and Statutory 
Legislation

 Human Resources Management 
and Transformation Human Resources Management and Transformation

SPR6 Job creation Job creation

SPR6a
New short term job opportunities 
created by In-house Productions.  
Linked to the Artistic Plan.

Number of new short term job 
opportunities created by In-
house Productions.

1615 750 1,660 Achieved

Large number of Productions staged 
during festivals as well as the Indie-Spot-

light and Rendezvous programmes 
have resulted in a significant number 

of short term jobs being created during 
2014/15.

Short term job op-
portunities created 
during planning of 
Productions are to 
be made manda-
tory to ensure SAST 

contribution to gov-
ernment priorities.

Artistic depart-
ment report.

3.3 Programme 3: Public Engagement
Purpose:  This programme is intended  to provide development opportunities for emerging Arts Practitioners to learn, perform and stage their Productions 
  thereby encouraging Socio-Economic Development.

The programme aims to achieve the following SAST goals:

Goal 2:   Provide development opportunities for emerging Arts Practitioners in the context of our programmes
Goal 6:   Ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Regulations and Statutory Legislation
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PROGRAMME 
STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES

CODE

PROGRAMME MEASURABLE OBJEC-
TIVES

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR BASELINE

OPERA-
TIONAL 
PLAN

ACTUAL 
ACHIEVED 

2014/15

STATUS 
TO DATE 

(ACHIEVED, 
PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED, 

NOT 
ACHIEVED)

REASON FOR NOT ACHIEVED, PARTIALLY 
ACHIEVED AND OVERACHIEVED

INTERVENTIONS THAT 
WILL BE PUT INTO 

PLACE

VERIFICATION 
DOCUMENTS

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS MUST BE READ IN 

CONJUNCTION WITH TECHNICAL 
INDICATOR DESCRIPTIONS 2013/2014

2014/15

(KEY OUTPUT - SMART) (UNIT OF MEASURE) ANNUAL 
TARGET

Goal 
2:   Provide 
development 
opportunities 
for emerging 
Arts Practi-
tioners in the 
context of our 
programmes

SPD Development Programme Development Programme

SPD1 Develop a Community Outreach 
Fieldwork programme.

Number of Communities 
participating in the programme. 
(Non-cumulative)

51 15 15 Achieved
Programme implementation completed 
successful in collaboration with Tshwane 

University of Technology.

Programme 
well established, 

improvements will 
be implemented as 

required.

Community 
Group Contract / 
Progress report.

SPD2 Develop a Schools Outreach 
programme.

Number of Schools participating 
in the programme. (Non-cumu-
lative)

11 15 15 Achieved Various schools participated in the pro-
gramme during 2014/15.

Further development 
of the programme 
is being planned 

in 2015/16 for 
implementation in 

2016/17.

Progress report.

SPD4
Train Directors who must stage Pro-
ductions in the Momentum Theatre 
for Development purposes.

Number of Directors trained  that 
staged Productions. 2 4 23 Achieved

Large number of directors provided with 
Dramaturg training for the IndieSpotlight, 

Festival and Artistic productions.

Comprehensive dra-
maturg  programme 
being implemented 

during 2015/16.

Production Con-
tract / Director 

Contract / Prog-
ress Report.

SPD5 Stage School set-works. Number of School set-works 
staged. n/a 3 4 Achieved

Increased number of co-produced set-
works resulted in more than the planned 

number being staged.

Set-works to be 
implemented as an 

ongoing programme 
in the Artistic Cal-

endar.

Computicket 
reporting system 

/ Production 
contracts / Pro-
duction budget.

SPD6
Stage Development Productions in 
the Momentum Theatre - Indie-Spot-
light

Number of Developmental 
Productions staged in the Mo-
mentum theatre.

28 10 26 Achieved
Introduction of the Indie-Spotlight pro-

gramme resulted in significantly more than 
the planned number of Development 

Productions being staged.

Indie-Spotlight to be 
implemented as an 

ongoing programme 
in the Artistic Cal-

endar.

Computicket 
reporting system 

/ Production 
contracts / Pro-
duction budget.

SPD7
Stage In-house Productions through 
touring and performing at venues 
outside the State Theatre.

Number of tours to stage In-house 
Productions. n/a 2 5 Achieved

Demand for in-house Productions to 
be toured to Cape Town, Durban and 
Mafikeng increased the actual perfor-

mance. Productions also taken to Graha-
mstown and Edinburgh festivals.

In-house Produc-
tions to be toured 
as required and 
in accordance 

with national and 
international festival 

calendars.

Tour report.

Goal 6:  Ensure 
compliance 
with appli-
cable Laws, 
Regulations 
and Statutory 
Legislation

 Human Resources Management 
and Transformation Human Resources Management and Transformation

SPR6 Learning and Development Learning and Development

SPD3
Develop a skilled and trained 
workforce by creating Internship 
opportunities.

Number of Internships created. n/a 2 3 Achieved
3 Internship positions created: 1 in Décor 
and Wardrobe and 2 in the Stage Services 
(originally planned for 1 but due to lack of 
staff increased to 2) Department.

Internship opportuni-
ties provided in sup-
port of government 
priorities.

Internship Con-
tract.
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3.4 Linking Objectives with Budgets

DEPARTMENT
2014/15 2013/14

BUDGET ACTUAL (OVER)/UNDER EXPENDITURE BUDGET ACTUAL (OVER)/UNDER EXPENDITURE

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Artistic 7 415 11 124 -3 710 12 185 11 632 553

Front of House 5 976 4 232 1 744 5 420 4 366 1 054

Security and Transport 5 312 6 080 -768 6 453 6 009 443

Parking 1 311 1 168 143 1 274 1 021 53

Wardrobe and Décor 2 769 2 690 79 2 567 2 553 14

Stage Services 8 017 6 834 1 183 6 996 7 631 -635

Marketing 4 224 4 320 -96 3 170 3 838 -668

Human Resources 1 876 1 381 496 1 851 1 528 323

Development 1 283 1 086 197 1 322 1 178 44

Administration 12 757 24 944 -12 187 11 073 24 916 -13 444

Facilities 3 832 4 081 -250 3 354 3 386 -32

Maintenance 13 372 11 924 1 447 13 588 13 953 -365

Kilnerton 1 447 1 363 85 1 174 1 357 -183

Total Operational 69 591 81 227 -11 636 70 427 83 368 (12 541)
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4. REVENUE COLLECTION

 2014/15 2013/2014

SOURCES OF REVENUE ESTIMATE 
ACTUAL 

(OVER)/UNDER 
COLLECTION ESTIMATE 

ACTUAL 
(OVER)/UNDER 
COLLECTIONAMOUNT COLLECTED AMOUNT COLLECTED

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Grant 63 843 65 091 -1 248 58 893 52 236 6 657

Fundraising, marketing, other 24 477 25 137 -660 23 857 21 439 2 418

Other Income 1 047 731 316 4 177 1 966 2 211

Total 89 367 90 959 -1 592 86 927 75 641 11 286

5. CAPITAL INVESTMENT
CAPEX projects were identified and prioritised for funding for the 2014/2015 financial year, but none was approved or funded until 31 March 2015.
•  These projects are:

1) Replacement of the Drama Theatre sound system.
2) Continuation of the foyer and ablution upgrade.
3) Continuation of the replacement of stage lighting equipment.

• Three of the 2013/2014 funded projects are continuing, and making good progress.   
• Infrastructure projects that are currently in progress:

• Upgrading of the Drama theatre upper stage machinery: - July 2016
• Replacement of passenger lifts: - Nov 2017.
• Replacement of suspended ceilings: - July 2016.

• We are planning to assess the long term future of the Kilnerton premises, with a view to either develop or sell the property.
• Due to a lack of sufficient funding and a shortage of skilled staff, preventative maintenance could not be done.
• As a result of the lack of proper preventative maintenance, breakdowns do occur more regularly and repairs are done on that basis. The equipment in the theatre is very specialised and expensive 

to maintain. We have requested DAC to assist us with funding for maintenance on major items. If funding is approved, a preventative maintenance plan can be implemented.
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INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECT BUDGET 
TYPE

14/15 TAR-
GET STATUS

          2014/15          2013/14

BUDGET ACTUAL OVER/UNDER BUDGET ACTUAL OVER/UNDER

R,000 R,000 R,000 R,000 R,000 R,000

Drama Upper Stage Machinery Upgrade 14/15 Upgrade Phase 2 Phase 2 completed, funding secured. 6 885 0 6 885 n/a n/a n/a

Upgrade of fire detection system Upgrade Phase 4 Phase 4, Tender was awarded 9th March ’15. 2 250 0 2 250 2 250 0 2 250 

Passenger lift replacement 14/15 Refurbish Phase 2 Phase 2 completed, funding secured. 11 886 0 11 886 n/a n/a n/a

Foyer and Ablution Upgrade 14/15 Upgrade Phase 1 Phase 1 completed 0 0 0 0 0 0

Replace cooling tower sand filters Refurbish Phase 1 Phase 1 completed 0 0 0 0 0 0

Upgrade AV equipment Upgrade Phase 1 Phase 1 completed 0 0 0 0 0 0

IT network development Upgrade Phase 1 Phase 1 completed 0 0 0 0 0 0

Upgrade security radio system Upgrade Phase 1 Phase 1 completed 0 0 0 0 0 0

Replace suspended ceilings Refurbish Phase 2 Phase 2 completed, funding secured. 1 300 0 1 300 0 0 0

Renovations of the Kilnerton premises Refurbish Phase 1 Phase 1 completed 0 0 0 0 0 0

Stage Lighting Equipment Upgrade Phase 1 Phase 1 completed 0 0 0 0 0 0

Replacement of Drama sound system Upgrade Phase 1 Phase 1 completed 0 0 0 0 0 0

Notes:
1. Phase one: Project identified, costed and funds requested via DAC UAMP program.
2. Phase two: Funding approved and received by SAST.
3. Phase three: Tender specification completed and advertised.
4. Phase four: Tender awarded and project started.
5. Phase five: Project in progress to be completed.
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PART C: GOVERNANCE



1. INTRODUCTION
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled and held to account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s ena-
bling legislation, and the Companies Act, corporate governance with regard to public entities is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem with 
the principles contained in the King Report on Corporate Governance.  Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of the public entity are responsible for corporate governance.

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
There was one Portfolio Committee meeting held on 28 April 2015, in Cape Town. Ms Barbara Masekela, Chairperson of Council; Ms Nise Malange, Deputy Chairperson of Council, Mr. Aubrey Sekhabi, 
Artistic Director and Acting CEO and Ms. Natashia Soopal, Chief Financial Officer, attended the meeting.  The two key issues highlighted and raised: audit qualifications for the previous financial year 
– the State Theatre must get a clean audit; the development of young artists and South African theatre as a whole.

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
The following table is a summary of the reports submitted to the Executive Authority:

REPORT SUBMISSION DATE FEEDBACK

First Quarterly Report 30 July 2014 Feedback received and responded to

Annual Report for 2013/14 4 September 2014 Tabled in Parliament

Second Quarterly Report 30 October 2014 Feedback received and responded to

Annual Performance Plan 2015/16 30 January 2015 Tabled in Parliament

Third quarterly Report 30 January 2015 None

Shareholders Compact 16 March 2015 Signed by Minister

4th quarterly Report 30 April 2015 None

Disciplinary Cases for 2014/2015 01 April 2014 Two
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4. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD 
Introduction

The Board controls, manages and directs the public entity.
• A Board may appoint such persons as it considers necessary to perform the functions of the declared institution concerned. 
• The determination of the remuneration and other conditions of service of persons appointed under subsection (3) must be in accordance with a scheme approved by the Minister in consultation 

with the Minister of Finance. 
• A Board must not later than one month before the commencement of each financial year, submit a business plan covering the next three years and containing such information as may be pre-

scribed by the Minister for his or her approval.
• A Board must submit an annual report to the Minister which must contain such information regarding the activities and financial position of the Board as may be prescribed.
• Within five months after the report has been tabled, a delegation consisting of the chairperson of the relevant Board and at least two other Board members must brief the relevant committees of 

Parliament on the annual report.

The role of the Board is as follows:
1) The functions of a Board are-
(a) to formulate policy; 
(b) to hold, preserve and safeguard all movable and immovable property of whatever kind placed in the care of or loaned or belonging to the declared institution concerned; 
(c) to receive, hold, preserve and safeguard all specimens, collections or other movable property placed under its care and management under section 10 (1);
(d) to raise funds for the institution;
(e) to manage and control the moneys received by the declared institution and to utilise those moneys for defraying expenses in connection with the performance of its functions;
(f) to keep a proper record of the property of the declared institution, to submit to the Director-General any returns required by him or her in regard thereto and to cause proper 
 books of account to be kept;
(g) to determine, subject to this Act and with the approval of the Minister, the objects of the declared institution; and
(h) to, generally, carry out the objects of the declared institution.

Board Charter
The SAST’s Board Charter was approved to ensure compliance with the Code Governance Principles for South Africa – 2009 as recommended by King 111.
  
The Board Charter is subject to the following provisions: The Cultural Institutions Act, Act 119 of 1998 as amended, the Public Finance Management Act no. 29 of 1999 as amended (PFMA), Governance 
Framework, Shareholder’s Compact – Constitution of the Republic of South Africa 108 of 1996, the Companies Memorandum of Incorporation and any other applicable Law, Regulatory Provisions or 
Policies or any Directive read together with the Code of Conduct.

The Board Charter provides guidelines to Board Members in respect of inter alia, the Board’s responsibilities, authority, composition, meetings and the need for performance evaluations.

The Board Charter also provides for a clear division of responsibilities to ensure a balance of power and authority, so that no one has unrestricted powers of decision-making.
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Composition of the Board
The following are the board members of SAST, appointed by the Minister of the Department of Arts & Culture:

NAME 

DESIGNATION 
(IN TERMS OF 
THE PUBLIC 

ENTITY BOARD 
STRUCTURE) 

DATE 
APPOINTED DATE RESIGNED QUALIFICATIONS AREA OF 

EXPERTISE 
BOARD 

DIRECTORSHIPS (LIST 
THE ENTITIES) 

OTHER 
COMMITTEES 

OR TASK 
TEAMS 

(E.G: AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

/ MINISTERIAL 
TASK TEAM) 

NO. OF 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

 
OUTGOING BOARD 
MEMBERS APRIL 
2014 TO JULY 2014

 2011 END OF TERM 
2014      

O NTSOANE CHAIRPERSON SEPTEMBER JULY 

Dr Ntsoane is the ex-CEO of the Indim Lo Foundation 
(2009 – 2014). Director of KYS Heritage and Fela De-
velopment Centre. He holds the Doctor of Philosophy 
in Indigenous Knowledge System, Master of Arts in So-
cial Science, BA in Communication and an Honours 
Degree in B Social Science.

Human 
Resources

He has in the past 
served on the Council 
of the South African Her-
itage Resource Agency 
and the Geographic 
Names Place

REMCO AND 
ARTISTIC COM-
MITTEE

2

B NEUHOFF BOARD MEMBER SEPTEMBER JULY

She holds a Diploma in Secretarial and Public Re-
lations, Sales and Marketing Management. One of 
her duties involves assisting the CEO in maintaining 
relationship with external Strategic partnerships, con-
sultants, unions and colleagues of the Theatre. 

Partnerships 
/ Human 
resources

Ms. Neuhoff served two 
terms on The State Thea-
tre’s Board.

REMCO 
CHAIRPERSON 
/ AUDIT COM-
MITTEE

2

A BODRICK BOARD MEMBER SEPTEMBER JULY

He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration 
and works as the Executive Manager in the Shared 
Services Stakeholder Marketing and Support in the 
Johannesburg Property Company.

Business / 
Marketing

Council member of the 
Albert Luthuli Museum. 
He had successful work-
ing relationship with The 
Freedom Park, Luthuli 
Museum and Iziko Muse-
um in the past.

ARTISTIC COM-
MITTEE 2

K NETSHIOMBO  BOARD MEMBER  SEPTEMBER  JULY
Dr Netshiombo is currently working for the University of 
Zululand. He holds a BA (SW) at the University of Fort 
Hare. BA (Hons) Psychology, to mention but a few.

 
Dr. Netshiombo served 
two terms on The State 
Theatre’s Board

 ARTISTIC 
COMMITTEE 
CHAIRPERSON

 2

J WATSON BOARD MEMBER SEPTEMBER JULY

He is a Chartered Accountant. He works for National 
Treasury. He worked for Sifuna Consulting. He currently 
works for National Treasury and an expert in National 
Treasury Regulations and PFMA

Finance
AUDIT COM-
MITTEE CHAIR-
PERSON

0

K MOTSIRI BOARD MEMBER SEPTEMBER JULY
Adv Motsiri is a practising advocate. He is currently a 
Director of the South African Dance Foundation and 
holds a B. uiris and LLB from the University of Limpopo.  

Law
AUDIT AND 
ARTISTIC COM-
MITTEE

2
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NAME 

DESIGNATION (IN 
TERMS OF THE PUB-
LIC ENTITY BOARD 

STRUCTURE) 

DATE AP-
POINTED DATE RESIGNED QUALIFICATIONS AREA OF 

EXPERTISE 
BOARD DIRECTORSHIPS 

(LIST THE ENTITIES) 

OTHER COM-
MITTEES OR 
TASK TEAMS 
(E.G: AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 
/ MINISTERIAL 
TASK TEAM) 

NO. OF 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

M NGONYAMA BOARD MEMBER SEPTEMBER JULY Mr Ngonyama has produced theatrical works, and is 
currently the CEO of the PE Opera House.

Arts and 
Culture

Served on the Nation-
al Arts Council as the 
Literature Panel mem-
ber and Chairperson 
between 2007 – 2011 at 
the Eastern Cape Arts 
and Culture, National 
Film and Video founda-
tion Deputy Chairper-
son. He also has vast 
experience as a Play-
house board member 
as he is currently serving 
as the Board Member of 
the PE Opera House.   

ARTISTIC COM-
MITTEE 1

NAME 

DESIGNATION (IN 
TERMS OF THE PUB-
LIC ENTITY BOARD 

STRUCTURE) 

DATE AP-
POINTED DATE RESIGNED QUALIFICATIONS AREA OF 

EXPERTISE 
BOARD DIRECTORSHIPS 

(LIST THE ENTITIES) 

OTHER COM-
MITTEES OR 
TASK TEAMS 
(E.G: AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 
/ MINISTERIAL 
TASK TEAM) 

NO. OF 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

 

NEWLY APPOINTED 
BOARD MEMBERS 
DECEMBER 2014 
TO MARCH 2015

 2014       

B MASEKELA CHAIRPERSON DECEMBER N/A B A  English , Cum Laude , Ohio University

English Lan-
guage and 
Literature, 
Cultural Ad-
ministration, 
Communica-
tions

Board Directorships: 
Standard Bank, SABC,  
De Beers Consolidated 
Mines, Altron Industries, 
Nelson Mandela Chil-
dren’s Fund, Freedom 
Park, Street Talk

N/A 1
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NAME 

DESIGNATION (IN 
TERMS OF THE PUB-
LIC ENTITY BOARD 

STRUCTURE) 

DATE AP-
POINTED DATE RESIGNED QUALIFICATIONS AREA OF 

EXPERTISE 
BOARD DIRECTORSHIPS 

(LIST THE ENTITIES) 

OTHER COM-
MITTEES OR 
TASK TEAMS 
(E.G: AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 
/ MINISTERIAL 
TASK TEAM) 

NO. OF 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

N MALANGE DEPUTY CHAIRPER-
SON DECEMBER N/A TBA TBA TBA

HR AND REM-
CO / ARTISTIC 
COMMITTEE

1

A VILAKAZI BOARD MEMBER DECEMBER N/A 

B. Com Marketing, Business Administration, Maritime 
Economics - University of Natal
Postgraduate Diploma in Business Management 
Honours Degree in Marketing Management - Uni-
versity of Natal
Masters Degree in Business Administration (MBA) - 
University of KwaZulu-Natal
Doctoral Degree in Business Administration (DBA) - 
University of KwaZulu-Natal
Internationally Published Author: Transport Logistics 
and contributor to academic journals
Chartered Marketer of South Africa or CM(SA)
Member of the Chartered Institute of Marketing (UK)
Member of the Institute of Directors of Southern 
Africa
Senior Leadership Programmes: GIBS (2006) and 
UCT (2010)

Business 
Adminis-
tration with 
emphasis on 
Marketing 
and Brand 
Manage-
ment

Non-Executive Chair-
man: MC5 Shipping 
(Pty) Ltd.
Director: Lama Market-
ing & Advertising (Pty) 
Ltd.
Director: Small Busi-
ness Finance Solutions 
(SBFS) (Pty) Ltd.

HR AND REM-
CO / AUDIT 
COMMITTEE

1

 S SINGH  BOARD MEMBER DECEMBER N/A 

B.A. (Law)  LLB: University of KZN - Westville Campus
Training /Certificates in Board Leadership and good 
governance from Gordon’s Institute Of Business 
Science
Aspirant female Judges course: Certificate 
from Constitutional Court     

 Law

Audit committee mem-
ber iLembe Municipal-
ity.    
Commissioner BCCSA. 
A Chairperson of The 
Tax Board SARS 
Durban.
List of Counsel at the 
International Criminal 
Court in the Hague.

HR AND REM-
CO CHAIRPER-
SON / AUDIT 
COMMITTEE

 1
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NAME 

DESIGNATION (IN 
TERMS OF THE PUB-
LIC ENTITY BOARD 

STRUCTURE) 

DATE AP-
POINTED DATE RESIGNED QUALIFICATIONS AREA OF 

EXPERTISE 
BOARD DIRECTORSHIPS 

(LIST THE ENTITIES) 

OTHER COM-
MITTEES OR 
TASK TEAMS 
(E.G: AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 
/ MINISTERIAL 
TASK TEAM) 

NO. OF 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED 

T MPHUTI BOARD MEMBER DECEMBER N/A 
B.A. (Law): University of KZN. LLB – University of Wit-
watersrand. MBA – University of KZN (incomplete) Law and 

Finance

Member of CLASA and 
BBEC. Chairperson of 
two audit committees: 
Arivia.Kom and the 
National Department 
of Communication. 
Served on the boards 
of: Tasima (Pty) Ltd, 
Aventura Ltd, April 27 
Group (Pty) Ltd.

AUDIT COM-
MITTEE CHAIR-
PERSON 

1

S CHAUKE BOARD MEMBER DECEMBER N/A BA (Hons) Marketing Communications

Marketing 
Strategy, 
Commu-
nication 
and Brand 
Building. 

Curator of the WEF 
Global Shapers, JHB 
Hub. 
United Nations Sustain-
ability Council Member.
Department of Arts & 
Culture, Africa Month 
Advisory Council 
member 

ARTISTIC 
COMMITTEE 
CHAIRPERSON

1

M MOFAMMERE BOARD MEMBER DECEMBER N/A 
B Com accounting: Turfloop
Management development program (GIBS) Finance Board member: B1SA 

Pty Ltd
AUDIT COM-
MITTEE 1

VT ZULU BOARD MEMBER DECEMBER N/A Ph.D. in Human Development: Vanderbilt University, 
Nashville, Tennessee, USA.

Human Re-
sources

Previously Ambassador 
to the State of Qatar 
and the Hashemite 
Kingdom of Jordon. 
Roving Ambassador to 
Fiji, Solomon Islands and 
Papua New Guinea in 
2007. Deputy Minister 
of Education: KZN 1993, 
and MEC for Education: 
KZN 1999.

HR AND REM-
CO COMMIT-
TEE

1
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Committees 
COMMITTEE NO. OF MEETINGS HELD NO. OF MEMBERS NAME OF MEMBERS YEAR

AUDIT & RISK 2 4

J WATSON
K MOTSIRI
A BODRICK
B NEUHOFF

APRIL TO JULY 2014

0 5

T MPHUTI
S SINGH
A VILAKAZI
M MOFAMMERE
V MOTHOLO

APPOINTED 29 APRIL 2015

HR & REMCO 1 3
B NEUHOFF
K NETSHIOMBO
O NTSOANE

APRIL TO JULY 2014

0 4

S SINGH
N MALANGE
V ZULU
A VILAKAZI

APPOINTED 29 APRIL 2015

ARTISTIC & SPONSORSHIP 1 4

K NETSHIOMBO
O NTSOANE
A BODRICK
M NGONYAMA

APRIL TO JULY 2014

0 3
S CHAUKE
N MALANGE
T MPHUTI

APPOINTED 29 APRIL 2015

Remuneration of board members
Refer to note 22 of the Annual Financial Statements for a detailed table of Board members remuneration during the 2014/15 financial year.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT
The South African State Theatre has an approved Risk Management Policy and compiles an annual Risk Management Plan and Strategy.
SAST assesses risk on an ongoing basis which is monitored through monthly departmental reports that capture occurrence, changes and mitigation of identified risks as well as the identification of new 
and emerging risks.
A Risk Management Committee has been appointed which performs ongoing risk assessment.
The SAST Audit and Risk Committee independently monitors the enterprise risk management system to ensure effectiveness.
Risk Management at SAST is now an ongoing activity.  Risk areas are prioritised and appropriate mitigation activities implemented to ensure continuous improvement of operational performance.
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6. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
Refer to the detailed Audit Committee Report.

The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members

NAME QUALIFICATIONS INTERNAL OR 
EXTERNAL 

IF INTERNAL, 
POSITION IN THE 
PUBLIC ENTITY 

DATE APPOINTED DATE 
RESIGNED 

NO. OF MEET-
INGS ATTENDED 

J WATSON

He is a Chartered Accountant. He worked for Sifuna Consulting. He cur-
rently works for National Treasury and is an expert in National Treasury 
Regulations and PFMA.   INTERNAL CHAIRPERSON SEPTEMBER 2011 END OF TERM 

JULY 2014 2

B NEUHOFF

She holds a Diploma in Secretarial and Public Relations, Sales and 
Marketing Management. One of her duties involves assisting the CEO 
in maintaining relationship with external Strategic partnerships, consult-
ants, unions and colleagues of the Theatre. 

INTERNAL MEMBER SEPTEMBER 2011 END OF TERM 
JULY 2014 2

A BODRICK
He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and works as the 
Executive Manager in the Shared Services Stakeholder Marketing and 
Support in the Johannesburg Property Company.

INTERNAL MEMBER SEPTEMBER 2011 END OF TERM 
JULY 2014 2

K MOTSIRI
Adv Motsiri is a practising advocate. He is currently a Director of the 
South African Dance Foundation and holds a B. uiris and LLB from the 
University of Limpopo.  

INTERNAL MEMBER SEPTEMBER 2011 END OF TERM 
JULY 2014 0

T MPHUTI B.A. (Law): University of KZN. LLB – University of Witwatersrand. MBA – 
University of KZN (incomplete) INTERNAL CHAIRPERSON 29 APRIL 2015 N/A 0

M MOFAMMERE B Com accounting: Turfloop. Management development program 
(GIBS) INTERNAL MEMBER 29 APRIL 2015 N/A 0

 S SINGH

B.A. (Law)  LLB: University of KZN - Westville Campus
Training /Certificates in Board Leadership and good governance from 
Gordon's Institute Of Business Science
Aspirant female Judges course: Certificate from Constitutional Court     

 INTERNAL  MEMBER 29 APRIL 2015  N/A  0
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NAME QUALIFICATIONS INTERNAL OR 
EXTERNAL 

IF INTERNAL, 
POSITION IN THE 
PUBLIC ENTITY 

DATE APPOINTED DATE 
RESIGNED 

NO. OF MEET-
INGS ATTENDED 

A VILAKAZI

B.Com Marketing, Business Administration, Maritime Economics - Univer-
sity of Natal
Postgraduate Diploma in Business Management 
Honours Degree in Marketing Management - University of Natal
Masters Degree in Business Administration (MBA) - University of KwaZu-
lu-Natal
Doctoral Degree in Business Administration (DBA) - University of KwaZu-
lu-Natal
Internationally Published Author: Transport Logistics and contributor to 
academic journals
Chartered Marketer of South Africa or CM(SA)
Member of the Chartered Institute of Marketing (UK)
Member of the Institute of Directors of Southern Africa
Senior Leadership Programmes: GIBS (2006) and UCT (2010)

INTERNAL MEMBER 29 APRIL 2015 N/A 0

V MOTHOLO (CA) SA
Bcom Honours (Accounting) EXTERNAL N/A 28 MAY 2015 N/A 0

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
SAST monitors compliance with applicable legislation, especially the PFMA, throughout the entity.  Quarterly compliance reports are prepared and MANCO is tasked to address areas of non-compliance.

8. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
SAST has an approved and implemented Fraud Prevention Plan.  This plan has formed the basis for the SAST Fraud and Corruption Strategy currently in its final draft which is to be implemented during 
the 2015/16 financial year. It encompasses mechanisms for reporting fraud as well as how to address these.
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9. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST
• Management and staff of SAST have regular communication relating to the possibility of conflict of interest.
• Controls have been implemented at Management and staff level where declaration of interests are requested to be signed.
• At a supply chain management (SCM) level, conflict of interest is minimised as follows:

• SCM is a centralised unit which consists of two SCM officials overseen by the CFO.
• Each SCM official signs a declaration of interest form to indicate if there is a conflict of interest with suppliers.
• One of the SCM official’s requests for quotations as requested by the individual departments and the other places the order.
• The CFO reviews all purchase orders ensuring that the suppliers are valid and the supplier with the qualifying quotation has been awarded the order.
• The CFO also ensures that SBD 4 forms are received from the suppliers.
• For tenders, the BEC and BAC are independent members and are also requested to sign independence declarations. Where a conflict of interest is identified, the member will not be in-

volved in the awarding of the tender.
Goods received vouchers are signed by the department requesting the goods/services and payment is made by the creditors’ clerk who is independent from the SCM process. All payments are 
checked and reviewed and released by the CFO and one other signatory.

10. CODE OF CONDUCT 
The rules and regulations contained in the code of conduct policy are to ensure that they are known and adhered to by all State Theatre personnel.  
An employee who contravenes any rule, regulation or instruction, or knowingly permits a contravention to take place shall be subject to such disciplinary measures as circumstances may warrant, in 
accordance with the Disciplinary Procedure. The Disciplinary process as detailed in the Disciplinary policy will be followed in the event that the code of conduct is contravened. Sanctions imposed 
will be as per the Disciplinary code.

11. HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
No major health or safety issues were experienced in the past year.  An evacuation drill was conducted in March.  Some areas of improvement have been identified and will be implemented.
Together with the DAC and Eskom, we are looking at ways to save on electrical consumption.  A number of areas were identified where controls could be put into place to achieve these savings.  At 
this point in time it seems as if the DAC will fund the implementation of these controls and use the South African State Theatre as a pilot project that will be used as a model to roll-out similar projects 
across other entities under the DAC.

12. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Fieldwork Programme is one of the programmes in The State Theatre’s Development Department. Through this highly successful programme, The State Theatre continues to uncover new actors 
and directors.  Selected Community Arts Groups go through intensive training in the areas of script writing, directing, acting, stage management and production.  After completing the first year of 
the programme, the groups get the chance to present their honed artistic skills through the staging of South African works at the Mzansi Fela Festival.  In the second year, they are given a chance to 
stage their own written plays.

Since its debut in 2007, the Fieldwork Programme has impacted over 100 Community Arts Groups and afforded many of them the opportunity to stage professional shows at The State Theatre’s Mo-
mentum Theatre, as well as various stages around Gauteng’s communities, namely Mafikeng, Witbank and the National Arts Festival in Grahamstown. 
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This is what the Fieldwork Programme entails:
• Attendance of weekly classes, workshops and master classes in Scriptwriting, Directing, and Stage Management
• A presentation of a seasoned body of South African work during Mzansi Fela Festival in the first year.
• Presentation of the group’s original work in the second year.
• Attendance of productions at The State Theatre.

13. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
The Audit Committee herewith presents its report for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 in terms of Section 51(1)(a) of the Public Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999.

Composition of the Audit Committee
The audit committee consists of five permanent members and is a sub-committee of The Council of The South African State Theatre. Chairperson of Council, executives, representatives of the Audi-
tor-General of South Africa and the internal auditors attend by standing invitation.

The outgoing committee met two times in the reporting year on the following dates: 
29 May 2015 
28 July 2015

 Incoming Committee

Name of member Date of appointment Date of termination
Mr. Tebogo Mphuti - Chairperson 29 April 2015 N/A

Dr Ayanda Vilakazi 29 April 2015 N/A

Ms. Shamilla Singh 29 April 2015 N/A

Ms. Madile Mofammere 29 April 2015 N/A

Mr. Vincent Motholo - External 28 May 2015 N/A

Audit Committee Responsibilities
The audit committee has adopted and complied with appropriate formal terms of reference in the audit charter in line with the requirements of Section 51(1)(a) of the Public Finance Management 
Act No. 1 of 1999 and Treasury Regulation 27.1.

The effectiveness of internal control
The audit committee monitors effectiveness of internal controls, in the context of the approved risk assessment of the organisation and the statutory regularity audits performed by Auditor-General of 
South Africa.
The committee has noted with some concern the failures of internal controls, policies and procedures at the entity. Management has assured the committee that plans have been put in place to 
address weaknesses and implement recommendations noted by the Auditor-General of South Africa to improve on the controls. The above mentioned plans will be submitted to the audit committee 
for review and progress monitoring.

Outgoing Committee

Name of member Date of appointment Date of termination
Mr. JD Watson – Chairperson 31 July 2011 31 July 2014

Mrs. BM Neuhoff 31 July 2011 31 July 2014

Adv. K Motsiri 31 July 2011 31 July 2014

Mr. A Bodrick 31 July 2011 31 July 2014

Adv. MJ Ralefatane 31 July 2011 1 April 2014
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Accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of external audits
The Committee reports that there was a regression in the audit opinion from the prior year. The entity received a qualified audit opinion on assets and aggregation of immaterial uncorrected mis-
statements. This was as a result of a lack of skills within the entity which resulted in weakened implementation of financial controls. The committee has requested management immediately address 
the identified areas, acquire appropriate skills in the finance department and develop appropriate audit action plans to address and implement weaknesses and recommendations identified by the 
Auditor General to ensure improvement in the audit outcome for the 2015/16 financial year.

Compliance with legal and regulatory provisions
The Committee has noted that controls have been implemented to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory provisions however these controls needs to be monitored by management to ensure 
that all legal and regulatory provisions are complied with.

The quality of in-year management and quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA
We are satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly reports prepared and issued by the Council of The South African State Theatre during the year under review.

Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements
The audit committee has:

• Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report with the Auditor-General of-South Africa and the Accounting Authority;
• Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s managements report and management’s response thereto;
• Reviewed changes in accounting policy and practices;
• Reviewed the organisation’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; and
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from audit.

The audit committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General of South Africa’s report on the annual financial statements, and is of the opinion that the audited financial statements should be ac-
cepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-General of South Africa.

Internal Audit
The term of our internal auditors expired on 31 March 2014. The Theatre is currently in the process of appointing new internal auditors.

Auditor-General of South Africa
The audit committee has met with the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

________________________

Mr. Tebogo Mphuti
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
The South African State Theatre
30 July 2015
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1. INTRODUCTION 
The South African State Theatre (SAST) had 112 budgeted positions. By the end of the financial year (2014/2015), SAST had only 98 filled positions. As staff resigned, positions were not filled and this was 
done for three reasons:

• Re-evaluate our current situation (Organizational Structure) in relation to our annual performance plans and strategic objectives.
• Positions were put on hold as cost savings measures.
• To re-evaluate their requirements and align them to our current needs.

Overview

Medical Aid
Provisions for medical aid subsidy will be put in place for the financial year 2015/16.

The Performance Appraisal. 
Performance appraisal system was re-evaluated .  The re-evaluation was done in order to:

• Ensure uniformity of the appraisal documents
• Ensure that populated Information meets the smart criteria
• Ensure that HOD’s are cognisant of the importance of discussing the required performance standards with employees.
 
Internship programme
The South African State Theatre introduced an Internship programme. The first phase of implementation was policy development to govern and guide the entity regarding the relationship between 
the intern and the training provider. Subsequently the appropriate contract were drawn and signed by both parties (Intern and SAST), laying out terms and conditions of the relation.

Staff wellness
SAST promotes and supports the health, safety and well-being of employees.
On an Annual basis a health and wellness week is conducted. Employees are tested for diabetes, High Blood pressure, HIV and Aids, cholesterol and other ailments. SAST also celebrates and com-
memorates world AIDS day. SAST staff, community members, elders, people with disability and artist’s mark this day by a march from the Union Buildings to the Applause Piazza, where guest speakers 
are invited to share their experiences and medical practitioners are on hand to render free services.
The safety of our employees is a priority, hence staff have been sent on refresher courses for first aid and fire fighting.  Evacuation drills are planned to ensure staff are aware of exit strategies in an 
emergency situation. 

Achievements
Implementation of Internship programme
Provision for the medical aid for the financial year 2015/16
Development and approval of SAST policies
Performance Appraisal system

Challenges
A lack of adequate budget has resulted in non-achievement of planned projects.
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Future HR plan/goals
Employment Equity and job grading

“Work of equal value. (The Employment Equity (EE) Act no 55 0f 1998 amendments effected from 1 August 2014) The section deals explicitly with unfair discrimination by an employer in respect of 
wages and other terms and conditions of employment of employees doing “the same or similar work or work of equal value”. A differentiation based on grounds envisaged by the Act will amount to 
unfair discrimination unless the employer can show that differences in wages or other conditions of employment are in fact based on fair criteria such as experience, skill, responsibility, etc. In response 
to the Act, SAST will implement a job grading system to measure and quantify different salary scales.

Succession plan
The first phase for the implementation of succession planning was policy development to guide and govern the process. The policy is developed and approved.

Medical aid allowance policy and implementation of medical aid scheme

Provision for the medical aid is approved. The policy will be developed and implemented. Service provider will be sourced out.

Skills Audit
The scope of the skills audit includes;
• To assess current skills against skills required for the job 
• Asses current job descriptions and align them to the current business requirements.
• Asses skills and qualifications of the incumbent in the job against the job and make recommendations

The result will inform the structure, career path (Training and development) and succession planning.

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 
Personnel Cost by programme

PROGRAMME 
TOTAL 

EXPENDITURE FOR THE 
ENTITY (R’000) 

PERSONNEL 
EXPENDITURE (R’000) 

PERSONNEL EXP. AS A % 
OF TOTAL  EXP. (R’000) NO. OF EMPLOYEES AVERAGE PERSONNEL COST PER 

EMPLOYEE (R’000) 

 Administration 67 242 23 392 35% 91 257

 Business Development 12 701 10 327 81% 4 2 581

 Public engagement 1 284 1 045 81% 3 348
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Personnel cost by salary band 

LEVEL  PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE 
(R’000) NO. OF EMPLOYEES AVERAGE PERSONNEL COST PER EMPLOYEE 

(R’000) 

Top Management 286 935 3 956 449

Senior Management N/A 0 N/A

Professional qualified 3 865 750 9 429 528

Skilled  711 684 50 14 234

Semi-skilled 206 498 17 12 147

Unskilled 188 665 19 9 930

Performance Rewards 

 PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE REWARDS PERSONNEL EXPENDITURE 
(R’000) 

% OF PERFORMANCE REWARDS  TO TOTAL 
PERSONNEL COST (R’000) 

Top Management N/A N/A N/A

Senior Management N/A N/A N/A

Professional qualified N/A N/A N/A

Skilled  N/A N/A N/A

Semi-skilled N/A N/A N/A

Unskilled N/A N/A N/A

TOTAL N/A N/A N/A
 

PAGE 54



Training Costs  

DIRECTORATE/ BUSINESS 
UNIT 

PERSONNEL 
EXPENDITURE 

(R’000) 
TRAINING 

EXPENDITURE (R’000) 
TRAINING 

EXPENDITURE AS A % OF 
PERSONNEL COST. 

NO. OF EMPLOYEES TRAINED AVG TRAINING  COST PER 
EMPLOYEE 

 Compliance & IT 12 939.57 12 939.57 N/A 2 6 469.78

 SCM 3 840.00 3 840.00 N/A 1 3 840.00

 Compliance 6 415.00 6 415.00 N/A 1 6 415.00

 All departments 41 575.00 41 575.00 N/A 98 424.23

Personal Assistants 3 600.00 3 600.00 N/A 2 1 800.00

Compliance & IT 22 446.60 22 446.60 N/A 2 11 223.3

Various Departments 11 164.02 11 164.02 N/A 7 1 594.86

Security 6 600.00 6 600.00 N/A 1 6 600.00

Compliance 5 700.00 5 700.00 N/A 1 5 700.00

SCM 4 925.00 4 925.00 N/A 1 4 925.00

Various 3 055.20 3 055.20 N/A 5 611.04

Various 1 924.68 1 924.68 N/A 3 641.56

Finance 5 480.00 5 480.00 N/A 1 5 480.00

Compliance & IT 11 605.20 11 605.20 N/A 2 5 802.60
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Employment and vacancies 

PROGRAMME 2013/2014  
APPROVED POSTS

2014/2015 
APPROVED POSTS 

2014/2015 
NO. OF EMPLOYEES 2014/2015  VACANCIES % OF VACANCIES 

Top Management 4 4 3 1 N/A

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 N/A

Professional qualified 12 12 9 3 N/A

Skilled  50 50 50 0 N/A

Semi-skilled 23 23 17 6 N/A

Unskilled 20 20 19 1 N/A 

TOTAL 109 109 98 11 N/A 

The company is re-aligning to ensure all current vacant positions are in line with strategic objectives and to ensure necessary skills are deployed at the required levels to maximise output and meet the 
overall strategic objectives.

Employment changes

SALARY BAND EMPLOYMENT AT BEGINNING OF 
PERIOD APPOINTMENTS  TERMINATIONS  EMPLOYMENT AT END OF THE 

PERIOD 

Top Management 3 1 1 March 2015

Senior Management 0 0 0 March 2015

Professional qualified 12 0 3 March 2015

Skilled  50 1 0 March 2015

Semi-skilled 23 0 6 March 2015

Unskilled 20 0 1 March 2015

Total 109 2 11  
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Reasons for staff leaving  

REASON NUMBER % OF TOTAL NO. OF STAFF LEAVING 
Death 0  0

Resignation 9 8%

Dismissal 0 0

Retirement 3 2.7 %

Ill health 1 0.9%

Expiry of contract 9 0%

Other 1 0.9%

Total 23 N/A

Due to re-aligning and financial constraints, positions are not filled.  

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action 

NATURE OF DISCIPLINARY ACTION NUMBER  
Verbal Warning 0

Written Warning 1

Final Written warning 0

Dismissal 0

Suspension 1
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 Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

 LEVELS MALE  

 African Coloured Indian White 
 Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target 
Top Management 1 0 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 0

Skilled  24 0 4 0 0 0 6 0

Semi-skilled 9 0 4 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 51 0 8 0 1 0 9 0

LEVELS FEMALE  

 AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE 
 Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target 
Top Management N/A N/A N/A N/A 1 N/A N/A N/A

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 4 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Skilled  11 0 0 0 0 0 5 0

Semi-skilled 2 0 2 0 0 0 N/A 0

Unskilled 3 0 0 0 0 0 N/A 0

TOTAL 20 0 2 0 1 0 6 0
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LEVELS DISABLED STAFF 
 Male Female
 Current  Target Current  Target 
Top Management 0 0 0 0

Senior Management 0 0 0 0

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0

Skilled  0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0

Unskilled 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0

Targets were not set for the financial year due to re-alignment of the organogram. 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE SOUTH AFRICAN STATE THEATRE
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

 1. I have audited the financial statements of The South African State Theatre set out on pages 66 to 117, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement 
of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes, 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting Authority’s responsibility for the financial statements

 2. The council, which constitutes the accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of 
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP)  and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for 
such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

 3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

 4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judge-
ment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the pur-
pose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion 

Property, plant and equipment 

 6. The public entity did not record all items of property, plant and equipment in accordance with GRAP 17 in the fixed asset register, which resulted in property, plant and equipment being 
understated by a projected misstatement of R2, 833,433, based on the sample. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that all fixed assets have been recorded or confirm 
the completeness of property, plant and equipment by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further adjustment to property, plant and equipment stated 
at R 128,326,559 in the financial statements was necessary.

Aggregation of immaterial uncorrected misstatements 

 7. The financial statements were materially misstated due to the cumulative effect of numerous individually immaterial uncorrected misstatements in the following items included in the statement 
of financial position, the statement of financial performance and the notes to the financial statements: 

• Current assets reflected as R30, 196,225 was misstated by R183,928.
• Current liabilities reflected as R5, 713,717 was misstated by R216,861.
• Revenue from exchange transactions reflected as R23, 618,018 was misstated by R140,264.
• Expenditure reflected as R81, 227,054 was misstated by R182,551.
• Note 23 on Prior period errors was misstated by R183,944. 
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 8. In addition, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence and to confirm the following items by alternative means:
• Non-current assets of R692,586 as included in the disclosed balance of R147, 947,098.
• Current assets of R289, 550 as included in the disclosed balance of R30, 196,225.
• Current liabilities of R120, 594 as included in the disclosed balance of R 5, 713,717.
• Revenue from exchange transactions of R168,208 as included in the disclosed balance of R23, 618,018.
• Expenditure of R259,601 as included in the disclosed balance of R81, 227,054.

 9. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any further adjustment to these items was necessary.

Qualified opinion 

 10. In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion paragraphs, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the South African State Theatre as at 31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the SA Standards of GRAP and the 
requirements of PFMA.

Emphasis of matters  

 11. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Restatement of corresponding figures

 12. As disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2014 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during 31 March 2015 in the financial state-
ments of the South African State Theatre at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2014.

Material underspending of the budget

 13. As disclosed in the Statement of Comparison of Budget vs. Actual Amounts, the public entity has materially underspent the budget on Programme 1: Administration to the amount of 
  R 20,240,375. This resulted from the late receipt of funds relating to capital expenditure from the Department of Arts and Culture.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

 14. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported 
performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation and internal control. The 
objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express 
an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

 15. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the following selected programmes presented in the annual perfor-
mance report of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2015:

 • Programme 1:  Administration on pages 26 to 28
 • Programme 2:  Business Development on pages 29 to 30
 16. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. 
 17. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether 

the reported performance was consistent with the planned programmes. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measura-
ble, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

 18. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.
 19. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for  the following programmes:
 • Administration
 • Business Development
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Additional matter 

 20. Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the selected programmes, I draw attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned targets

 21. Refer to the annual performance report on page(s) 24 to 34 for information on the achievement of planned targets for the year. 

Compliance with legislation

 22. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My 
findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Financial statements, performance and annual reports

 23. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework and/or supported by full and proper records as required by 
section 55 (1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of non-current assets, revenue, expenditure and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statements 
were subsequently corrected and/or the supporting records were provided subsequently, but the uncorrected material misstatements and/ or supporting records that could not be provided 
resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified audit opinion.

Procurement and contract management

 24. Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without obtaining the required price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.

Assets management

 25. Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as required by sections 50 (1)(a) and 51 (1)(c) of the PFMA.

Expenditure management

 26. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51 (1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA.

Audit Committee

 27. An audit committee was not in place for a significant part of the current year as required by section 51 (1)(a)(ii) and section 77 (c) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.1.1 and 27.1.2.

Internal audit

 28. The accounting authority did not ensure that the internal audit function was established, as required by section 51 (1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 27.2.2 and 27.2.3.

Consequence management

 29. Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who incurred and/or permitted irregular expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 
51 (1)(e)(iii) of the PFMA. This was because instances of Irregular expenditure and Fruitless and Wasteful expenditure were not investigated.

Internal control

 30. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance plan and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the signifi-
cant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for qualified opinion and the findings on non-compliance with legislation included in this report.
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Leadership

 31. The entity did not exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial and compliance and related internal controls.

Financial and performance management

 32. The entity did not prepare regular, accurate and complete financial reports that are supported and evidenced by reliable information.
 33. The entity did not implement proper record keeping in a timely manner to ensure complete, relevant and accurate information is accessible and available to support financial reporting.
 34. The entity did not review and monitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Governance

 35. The entity did not ensure that there was an adequately resourced and functioning internal audit unit that identifies internal control deficiencies and recommends corrective action effectively.
 36. The entity did not ensure that an audit committee was present for most part of the year to promote accountability and service delivery through evaluating and monitoring responses to risks 

and providing oversight over the effectiveness of the internal control environment including financial and performance reporting and compliance with legislation.

_____________________________________

Pretoria
31 July 2015
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Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Legal form of entity Schedule 3A Public Entity

Nature of business and principal activities
The South African State Theatre is classified as a Receiving House i.e. presenting Performing Arts Productions from commercial producers. We have 
an artistic component that produces developmental productions. The principal activities of the South African State Theatre include Production of 
Developmental Performing Arts Productions, theatre rentals, office rental, rental of parking facility and rental of décor, wardrobe and props.

Members Ms B Masekela (Chairperson)
Dr AM Vilakazi 
Mr S Chauke 
Mr TK Mphuti 
Dr VT Zulu
Ms BM Malange
Ms MF Mofammere
Ms S Singh

Registered office FH Odendaal Building
320 Pretorius Street
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0002

Postal address PO Box 566
Pretoria
0001

Controlling entity
Department of Arts and Culture (DAC) Auditors
Auditor-General of South Africa Jurisdiction
Declared Cultural Institution under the DAC

Auditors Auditor-General of South Africa

Jurisdiction Declared Cultural Institution under the DAC

The South African State Theatre
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The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented to the parliament: 

Index Page
Statement of Financial Position               68

Statement of Financial Performance          69

Statement of Changes in Net Assets               71

Cash Flow Statement                    72

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts          73

Accounting Policies                   75 - 91

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements          92 - 117

The annual financial statements set out on pages 66 to 117, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the accounting authority on 31 July 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

__________________________________

Chair of the Council

__________________________________

Artistic Director / Acting CEO
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ASSETS

Current Assets
Inventories 6 350,645 371,622

Receivables from exchange transactions 7 2,570,634 1,271,591

Cash and cash equivalents 8 27,274,946 16,831,758

30,196,225 18,474,971

Non-Current Assets

Investment property 2 19,461,225 8,952,470

Property, plant and equipment 3 128,326,559 129,739,780

Intangible assets 4 159,314 255,119

147,947,098 138,947,369
Total Assets 178,143,323 157,422,340

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions 10 4,771,740 3,887,999

Employee cost provision 9 941,977 846,610

5,713,717 4,734,609

Non-Current Liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation 5 5,353,894 5,852,399

Total Liabilities 11,067,611 10,587,008
Net Assets 167,075,712 146,835,332
Accumulated surplus 167,075,712 146,835,332

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015

2015 2014

Notes(s) Restated
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Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Sale of goods 2,020,474 2,079,439

Rendering of services 2,059,874 2,081,425

Rental of facilities and equipment 17,547,027 16,251,724

Sundry income 1,500,974 1,353,199

Interest received - investment 489,669 918,827

Total revenue from exchange transactions 23,618,018 22,684,614
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Sponsorship revenue
Advertising sponsorships 576,367 -

Other sponsorships received 1,672,712 720,000

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 12 65,091,578 52,235,644

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions 67,340,657 52,955,644
Total revenue 11 90,958,675 75,640,258

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Financial Performance

2015 2014

Notes(s) Restated
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Expenditure
Personnel 14 (34,766,833) (33,591,610)

Depreciation and amortisation   (9,881,254) (10,465,365)

Impairment loss/ Reversal of impairments (283,538) -

Finance costs 16   (20,024) (6,583) 

Debt impairment 51,444   (1,366,735) 

Collection costs (839) -

Repairs and maintenance   (2,938,657)   (3,857,009)

General Expenses 13 (33,387,353) (34,080,492)

Total expenditure (81,227,054) (83,367,794)
Operating surplus (deficit)    9,731,621   (7,727,536)
Fair value adjustments 10,508,755 -

Surplus (deficit) for the year 20,240,376 (7,727,536)

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Financial Performance (continued)

2015 2014

Notes(s) Restated
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Opening balance as previously reported 150,019,425 150,019,425

Adjustments

Prior year adjustments 4,169,710 4,169,710

Balance at 01 April 2013 as restated 154,189,135 154,189,135

Changes in net assets

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year (7,727,536) (7,727,536)

Total changes (7,727,536) (7,727,536)

Opening balance as previously reported 146,461,603 146,461,603

Adjustments

Prior year adjustments 373,733 373,733

Balance at 01 April 2014 as restated 146,835,336 146,835,336

Changes in net assets

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 20,240,376 20,240,376

Total changes 20,240,376 20,240,376

Balance at 31 March 2015 167,075,712 167,075,712

Refer to Note 23 for prior period adjustments

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Accumulated 
surplus

Total net 
assets
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Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts
Sale of goods and services 23,502,022 23,343,017

Grants 65,091,578 52,235,644

Interest income 489,669 918,827

89,083,269 76,497,488

Payments
Employee costs 35,169,971 33,527,158

Suppliers 32,638,496 37,006,279

Finance costs 20,024 6,584

67,828,491 70,540,021

Net cash flows from operating activities 18 21,254,778 5,957,467
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 10,811,588 8,445,804

Purchase of other intangible assets 4 - 289,881

Net cash flows from investing activities 10,811,588 8,735,685
Cash flows from financing activities
Finance lease payments - 104,188

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 10,443,190 2,882,406
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 16,831,758 19,714,161

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8 27,274,948 16,831,755

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Cash Flow Statement

2015 2014

Notes(s) Restated
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Income
State Contribution

Government  grants 65,091,578.00 - - 65,091,578.00 -65,091,578.00 No variance

Self generated income 24,556,278.00 - 24,556,278.00 25,867,097.00 -1,310,819.00
Increase is as a result in an increase in income 
generation

Total Income 89,647,856.00 - 89,647,856.00 90,958,675.00 -1,310,819.00

State Funded Expenditure

Artistic 4 7,414,857.04 - 7,414,857.04 11,124,415.86 -3,709,558.82 Variance is as a result of adhoc salaries

Front of House 5 & 20 5,976,471.84 5,976,471.84 4,232,329.83 1,744,142.01

Less inventory  was purchased
then budgeted, furthermore  there has been 
a decrease in the adhoc salaries

Security and Transport 9 5,312,188.13 5,312,188.13 6,079,744.91 -767,556.78

Variance is as a result of security expenses 
and repairs and maintenance to the motor 
vehicles

Parking 10 1,310,735.67 1,310,735.67 1,167,709.83 143,025.84
There has been a savings on employee costs 
as well as other sundry expenses.

Wardrobe and décor hire 12 2,768,906.25 2,768,906.25 2,689,838.70 79,067.55

Variance is as a result of a
decrease in salary costs and overall savings 
within the department.

Stage Services 7 8,016,553.98 8,016,553.98 6,833,617.11 1,182,936.87

Variance is as a result of a
decrease in salary costs and repairs and main-
tenance cost within the department.

Marketing 16 4,224,237.62 4,224,237.62 4,319,938.78 -95,701.16
Variance is as a result of overspending on 
marketing  and advertising.

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Description Dept No. Approved
budget Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts on

comparable basis

Difference between
final budget and

actual
Explanations for variances
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Human Resources 18 1,876,213.72 1,876,213.72 1,380,582.40 495,631.32
Variance is as a result of a decrease in salary 
costs and training.

Development 17 1,282,675.92 1,282,675.92 1,086,063.71 196,612.21
Variance is as a result of a decrease in salary 
costs.

Administration 11 & 3 & 13 12,757,335.05 12,757,335.05 24,944,293.54 -12,186,958.49
Variance is as a result of depreciation  not 
being budgeted

Facilities 6 3,831,685.69 3,831,685.69 4,081,394.92 -249,709.23

Variance is as a result of overspending  em-
ployee costs. Furthermore  the leave provision 
was not budgeted for.

Maintenance 8 & 14 13,371,599.32 13,371,599.32 11,924,316.95 1,447,282.37

Variance is as a result of a decrease in salary 
costs and other operating costs within the 
department.

Kilnerton 15 1,447,412.81 1,447,412.81 1,362,805.98 84,606.83 Variance is as a result of savings in electricity.

Executive -

Total Operational 69,590,873.04 - 69,590,873.04 81,227,052.52 -11,636,179.48

Add reconciling item: capex 20,051,569.00 20,051,569.00 -10,535,754.82
Reconciling  items are fair value adjustments  
and capex grants

Surplus 5,413.96 - 5,413.96 20,267,377.30 6,712,551.00

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Description Dept No. Approved
budget Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts on

comparable basis

Difference between
final budget and

actual
Explanations for variances
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1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in 
South African Rand.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below. These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1   Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclo-
sures. Use of available information and the application of judgment is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the 
annual financial statements. Significant judgemental include:

Trade receivables

The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes 
judgemental as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables and loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and 
other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emer-
gence period.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted mar-
ket price used for financial assets held by the entity is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. The entity uses a variety of 
methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-
term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by 
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the entity for similar financial instruments.

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Accounting Policies
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1.1   Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value- in-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell.

The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If there are indications that impairment 
may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note 9 - Provisions.

Effective interest rate

The entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows.

Allowance for impairment

On receivables an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the receivables car-
rying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.

1.2   Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for:
• use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
• administrative purposes, or
• sale in the ordinary course of operations.

Owner-occupied property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are associated with the investment property will flow to the entity, and the 
cost or fair value of the investment property can be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the invest-
ment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Accounting Policies
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1.2   Investment property (continued)

Fair value

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value. The fair value of investment property reflects market conditions at the reporting date.
A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the period in which it arises.

1.3   Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administra-
tive purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in 
the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is 
initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equip-
ment.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is 
recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obli-
gated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the man-
ner intended by management.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost 
of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised.
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1.3   Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Item        Average useful life
Buildings        10 - 75 years 
Motor vehicles       7 - 15 years 
Office furniture and equipment (Including computer equipment)  5 – 7 years 
Computer equipment      4 - 5 years 
Wardrobe       5 - 20 years 
Plant and equipment      4 - 15 years

1.4   Intangible assets

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:
• is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, assets or liability; or
• arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or separate from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
An intangible asset acquired through a non-exchange transaction, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and any impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Item    Useful life
Computer software, other  2 - 5 years

Intangible assets are derecognised:
• on disposal; or
• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised.
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1.5   Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest of another entity.

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the 
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allow-
ance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of financial position.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest 
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows 
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points 
paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all 
other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it 
is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life
of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

A financial asset is:
• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
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1.5   Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest 
rate risk and other price risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency 
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

A financial asset is past due when a counter party has failed to make a payment when contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
• a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the 

time of the contribution; or
• a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net assets of an entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been 
incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:
• the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
• are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
• derivatives;
• combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
• instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:
- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair value at initial recognition; and
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at cost.

Classification

The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:
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1.5   Financial instruments (continued) 

Class    Category
Trade and other receivables Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class    Category
Trade and other payables  Financial liability measured at amortised cost

Initial recognition

The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:
• Financial instruments at amortised cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost are subject to an impairment review.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s car-
rying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have 
been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.6   Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership.

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.

Finance leases - lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to pro-
duce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis 
as the lease revenue.

The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental 
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of financial performance.

Operating leases - lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments 
are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.
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1.7   Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribu-
tion.

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expens-
es are recognised when the goods are distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of 
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or 
current replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.8   Impairment of non-cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a 
profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return.

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential 
through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax expense.
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1.8   Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued)

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Useful life is either:

(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

Reversal of an impairment loss

The entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have de-
creased. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable service amount 
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased carrying 
amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as 
a revaluation increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset
is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

1.9   Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees. Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:
• an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
• an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity 
has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsi-
bilities.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 
related service.
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1.9   Employee benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:
• wages, salaries and social security contributions;
• short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave) where the compensation for the absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which 

the employees render the related employee service;
• bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service; and

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for 
that service:
• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an 

asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and
• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the 
absence occurs.  The entity measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that 
has accumulated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of 
past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which are payable after the completion of employment.

Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benefits for one or more employees.

Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in 
actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined benefit liability the entity recognise actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they occur.

Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets (other than non-transferable financial instruments issued by the reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate 
from the reporting entity and exists solely to pay or fund employee benefits and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to the reporting entity’s own credi-
tors (even in liquidation), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity, unless either:
• the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit obligations of the plan or the reporting entity; or
• the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current period.
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1.9   Employee benefits (continued)

Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the benefits are one period closer to settlement.

Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods, resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, 
post-employment benefits or other long-term employee benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are changed so that the present value of the defined benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benefit liability the entity recog-
nise past service cost as an expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended.

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee 
service in the current and prior periods.

The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for any constructive obligation that arises from the entity’s informal practices. Informal 
practices give rise to a constructive obligation where the entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits. An example of a constructive obligation is where a change in
the entity’s informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to its relationship with employees.

The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts:
• the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;

The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The entity measure the resulting asset at the lower of:
• the amount determined above; and
• the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. The present value of these economic benefits is deter-

mined using a discount rate which reflects the time value of money.

Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit.

The entity determine the present value of defined benefit obligations with sufficient regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements do not differ materially from the 
amounts that would be determined at the reporting date.

The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another Standard requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:
• current service cost;
• interest cost;
• actuarial gains and losses; and
• past service cost.

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. The results of the valuation are updated for any material transactions and other material 
changes in circumstances (including changes in market prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date.
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1.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
• has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
- the principal locations affected;
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
- when the plan will be implemented; and
• has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 20.

1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions 
from owners.

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use 
of assets) to the other party in exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
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1.11 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
• the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
• the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
• and
• the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of 
the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:
• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence 
that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act 
is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Interest, royalties and dividends

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
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1.12 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contribu-
tions from owners.
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or 
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.
Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, 
services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the 
liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisi-
tion, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting 
date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of 
the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

1.13 Borrowing costs

It is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs when, and only when, there is clear evidence that it is difficult to link the borrowing requirements of an entity directly to the nature of the expenditure to 
be funded i.e. capital or current.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.14 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
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1.15 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is 
classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.16 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any appli-
cable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be re-
corded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure regis-
ter. No further action is required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be 
updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropri-
ately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must 
thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and 
disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person 
is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly 
in the irregular expenditure register.
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1.17 Related parties

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the 
three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legisla-
tion, in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.

1.18 Taxation

No provision for taxation or VAT has been made since the entity is directly funded by the government and exemption from taxation has been granted by the South African Revenue Services (SARS).

1.19 Going concern

The annual financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. Nothing has come to the attention of the members of council to indicate that the institute will not remain a going concern for 
the foreseeable future. The South African State Theatre
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2. Investment property
2015 2014

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Investment property 19,461,225 - 19,461,225 8 952,470 - 8,952,470

Reconciliation of investment property - 2015
Opening 
balance

Fair value 
adjustments Total

Investment property 8,952,470 10,508,755 19,461,225

Reconciliation of investment property - 2014
Opening  balance Total

Investment property 8,952,470 8,952,470

Details of valuation

The investment property is held at fair value. The market value of the investment property as at 31 March 2015 has been valued at R19 461 225. The valuation method used is the income capitalization 
method because most of the buildings on the property are let and used for commercial/industrial purpose. The property is situated on Erf 169 Weavind Park, City of Tshwane. The valuation was 
performed by Pierre Ryner Valuers.

Amounts recognised in surplus and deficit for the year.

Rental revenue from investment property - Kilnerton 2,014,973 2,074,338

Direct operating expenses from rental generating property - Kilnerton 1,362,806 1,356,690
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3. Property, plant and equipment
2015 2014

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

2015 2014

Land 5,002,920 - 5,002,920 5,002,920 - 5,002,920

Buildings 150,780,297 (79,479,071) 71,301,226 153,329,380 (83,845,280) 69,484,100

Motor vehicles 376,899 -78,038 298,861 376,899 61,797 315,102

Office furniture and equipment 9,966,948 (4,852,645) 5,114,303 9,846,816 (3,573,033) 6,273,783

IT equipment 1,114,000 (538,253) 575,747 1,043,807 295,733 748,074

Wardrobe 931,300 (348,968) 582,332 931,300 279,175 652,125

Plant and equipment 35,103,891 (16,061,035) 19,042,856 34,866,035 (9,868,017) 24,998,018

Artwork 18,418,243 - 18,418,243 18,418,243 - 18,418,243

Capital work in progress 7,990,071 - 7,990,071 3,847,415 - 3,847,415

Total 229,684,569 (101,358,010) 128,326,559 227,662,815 (97,923,035) 129,739,780
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3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and `equipment - 2015

Opening balance Additions Disposals Transfers Depreciation   Impairment Loss Total
Land 5,002,920 - - - - - 5,002,92

Buildings 69,484,100 377,668 (2,155,824) 5,863,084 (2,267,802 - 71,301,22

Motor vehicles 315,102 - - - (16,241) - 298,86

Office equipment 6,273,783 120,131 - - (1,181,410) (98,201) 5,114,30

Computer  equipment 748,074 70,193 - - (238,013) (4,507) 575,74

Wardrobe 652,125 - - - (69,793) - 582,33

Plant and equipment 24,998,018 237,856 - - (6,012,188) (180,830) 19,042,85

Artwork 18,418,243 - - - - - 18,418,24

Capital work in progress 3,847,415 10,005,740 - (5,863,084) - - 7,990,07

129,739,780 10,811,588 (2,155,824) - (9,785,447) (283,538) 128,326,55
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014

Opening
balance

Additions Disposals Transfers Depreciation Total

Land 5,002,920 - - - - 5,002,920

Buildings 70,113,540 - - 2,456,257 (3,085,697) 69,484,100

Motor vehicles 331,343 - - - (16,241) 315,102

Office equipment 7,511,460 20,906 (6,695) - (1,251,888) 6,273,783

Computer equipment 955,213 83,987 (62,793) - (228,333) 748,074

Wardrobe 721,919 - - - (69,794) 652,125

Plant and equipment 28,505,839 2,554,352 (438,306) - (5,623,867) 24,998,018

Artwork 18,418,243 - - - - 18,418,243

Leased office equipment 98,250 - - - (98,250) -

Capital work in progress 517,113 5,786,559 - -2,456,257 - 3,847,415

132,175,840 8,445,804 (507,794) - (10,374,070) 129,739,780
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4. Intangible assets
2015 2014

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying value Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

accumulated 
impairment

Carrying value

Computer software, other 397,078 (237,7640) 159,314 397,079 (141,960) 255,119

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015
Opening
balance

Amortisation Total

Computer software, other 255,119 (95,805) 159,314

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014
Opening
balance

Additions Amortisation Total

Computer software, other 56,531 289,881 (91,293) 255,119
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5. Employee benefit obligations

Defined benefit plan
The South African State Theatre provides an ex-gratia pension fund to qualifying pensioners. The South African State Theatre provides an ex-gratia pension fund to qualifying pensioners. South African 
State Theatre provides an ex-gratia pension fund to qualifying pensioners.

Post retirement medical aid plan

A valuation was performed for the medical aid fund based on 18 (2014: 19) retired pensioners previously employed by the State Theatre.  The Projected Unit redit funding method has been used to 
determine the past-service liabilities at the valuation date and the projected annual expense in the year following the valuation date. The expected value of each employee and their spouse's future 
medical aid subsidies is projected by allowing for future medical inflation.  The calculated values are then discounted at the assumed discount interest rate to the present date of valuation.  Mortality, 
retirements and withdrawals from services was also taken into consideration.  The accrued liability is determined on the basis that each employee's medical aid benefit accrues uniformly over the 
working life of an employee up until retirement.  Further it is assumed that the current policy for awarding medical aid subsidies remains unchanged in the future. As at the valuation date, the medical 
aid liability of the State Theatre was unfunded, i.e. no dedicated assets had been set aside to meet this liability.  No valuation was done on any assets.

Pension benefits

The ex-gratia pension liability was calculated based on 3 (2014:  4) retired pensioners previously employed by the State Theatre by multiplying the annual pension provided by an appropriate annuity 
factor as at the valuation date. As at the valuation date, the ex-gratia benefits liabilities of the State Theatre were unfunded, i.e. no dedicated assets have been set aside to meet this liability.  No 
valuation was done on any assets.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Carrying value
Present value of the defined benefit obligation - Ex-gratio Pensioners (253,399) (290,291)

Present value of the defined benefit obligation - Post Employment Medical Aid (5,599,000) (5,242,000)

Interest cost - Ex-gratio Pensioners (17,970) (15,725)

Interest cost - Post Employment Medical Aid (432,000) (322,000)

Benefits paid - Ex-gratio Pensioners 28,410 43,040

Benefits paid - Post Employment Medical Aid 621,794 583,826

Actuarial loss - Ex-gratio Pensioners 47,481 9,577

Actuarial loss - Post Employment Medical Aid 250,790 (618,826)

(5,353,894) (5,852,399)
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5. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

The fair value of plan assets includes:

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Opening balance 5,852,399 5,532,291

Benefits paid (650,204) (626,866)

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 151,699 946,974

5,353,894 5,852,399
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance

Interest cost - Ex-gratio Pensioners 17,970 15,725

Interest cost - Post Employment Medical Aid 432,000 322,000

Actuarial losses - Ex-gratio Pensioners (47,481) (9,577)

Actuarial losses - Post Employment Medical Aid (250,790) 618,826

151,699 946,974

Calculation of actuarial gains and losses

Actuarial (gains) losses - Obligation 298,271 627,867

Key assumptions used

Assumptions used at the reporting date:

Discount rates used - Ex-gratio Pensioners 7,17% 8,40%

Discount rates used - Post Employment Medical Aid 7,42% 8,18%

Consumer Price Inflation - Ex-gratio Pensioners 5,10% 6,58%

Consumer Price Inflation - Post Employment Medical Aid 6,81% 6,36%

Pension inflation 5,10% 6,58%

Medical aid contribution inflation 6,81% 7,36%

Net effective discount rate - Ex-gration Pensioners 1,98% 1,71%
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5. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Net effective discount rate - Post Employment Medical Aid 0,57% 0,76%

The basis used to determine the overall expected rate of return on assets is as follow: 

Ex-gratia Pensioners

a) Economic Assumptions

The discount rate for the Ex-gratia pensioners was set equal to the yield on the R186 bond as at the valuation date.  The CPI assumption was calculated as the difference between the yield on the 
R186 nominal yield bond and the R197 real yield bond as the valuation date.  An assumption was made  that the pension increases awarded to ex-gratia pensioners will be equal to the increase in 
CPI.  The net effective discount rate is the difference between the discount rate assumption and the pension inflation assumption.

b) Demographic Assumptions

The PA (90) mortality table was used to determine the annuity factors.  An assumption was made that all pensioners were

married with males being five years older than their female spouses.

c) Sensitivity Analysis

In order to illustrate the sensitivity of the results to changes in certain key variables, the liabilities was recalculated using the
following assumptions:

- 20 % increase / decrease in the assumed level of withdrawal rates:

- 1 % increase / decrease in pension salary inflation

Withdrawal rate

Deviations from the assumed level of withdrawal experience of the eligible persons will have a large impact on the actual cost
to the State Theatre.  If the actual rates of withdrawal turns out to be higher than the rates assumed in the valuation basis, then
the cost to the State Theatre in the form of benefits will reduce and vice versa.

 

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2015 2014

Restated

PAGE 98



5. Employee benefit obligations (continued)
An assumption was made that the ex-gratia pensions will continue to be paid to the spouse after the death of the pensioner at a reduced rate of 80 % of the pension in payment.  Payments to the 
spouse are continued until death. We have illustrated the effect of higher and lower withdrawal rates by increasing and decreasing the withdrawal rates by 20 %. The effect is illustrated in the "With-
drawal Rate Table" below.

Pension inflation

The cost of the ex-gratia benefits is dependent on the increase in the annual pensions paid to employees.  The rate at which salaries increase will thus have a direct effect on the liability of future 
retirees. We have tested the effect of a 1% p.a. change in the Pension inflation assumption.  The effect is illustrated in the "Pension Inflation Table" below.

Post Employment Medical Aid

a)  Discount rate

The determination of the Discount rate assumption must be used as the rate that can be determined by reference to market yields as at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds.  
In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market yields (at the balance sheet date) on government bonds should be used.  The currency and term of the corporate bonds or 
government bonds should be consistent with the currency and estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.  The discount rate was therefore set as the yield of the R208 South Africa 
Government Bond as at the valuation date.  The actual yield on the R208 bond was sourced from the RMB Global Markets website on the 31st of March 2014.

b) Medical aid inflation

The medical aid inflation rate was set with reference to the past relationship between CPI and medical aid contribution rate inflation.  We have derived the underlying future rate of consumer price 
index inflation (CPI inflation) from the relationship between current conventional bond yields (R208) and current index-linked bond yields (R197).  South Africa has experienced high health care cost 
inflation in recent years.  The annualised compound rates of increase for the last ten years show that registered medical aid schemes contribution inflation outstripped general CPI by almost 3 % year 
on year.  There increases was not considered to be sustainable and an assumption was made that medical aid contribution increases would outstrip general inflation by 1 % per annum over the fore-
seeable future.

c)  Mortality Rates

Mortality post-employment (for pensioners) has been based on the PA (90) ultimate mortality tables.  No explicit assumption was made about additional mortality or health care costs due to AIDS.

d)  Spouses and Dependants

An assumption was made that the marital status of members who are currently married will remain the same up to retirement. Where necessary it was assumed that female spouses would be five 
years younger than their male spouses at retirement.

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2015 2014

Restated

PAGE 99



5. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

e) Sensitivity analysis
In order to illustrate the sensitivity of our results to changes in certain key variables, we have recalculated the liabilities using
the following assumptions:
20 % increase / decrease in the assumed level of mortality;
- 1 % increase / decrease in the medical aid inflation

Mortality rate

Deviations from the assumed level of mortality experience of the current employees and the continuation members (pensioners) will have a large impact on the actual cost to the State Theatre.  If 
the actual rates of mortality turns out higher than the rates assumed in the valuation basis, the cost to the State Theatre in the form of subsidies will reduce and vice versa. We have illustrated the 
effect of higher and lower mortality rates by increasing and decreasing the mortality rates by 20 %.  The effect is illustrated in the "Mortality rate table" below.

Medical aid inflation

The cost of the subsidy after retirement is dependent on the increase in the contributions to the medial aid scheme before and after retirement.  The rate at which these contributions increase will thus 
have a direct effect on the liability of future retirees. We have tested the effect of a 1 % p.a. change in the medical aid inflation assumption.  The effect is illustrated in the "Medical aid inflation table" 
below. The basis used to determine the overall expected rate of return on assets, including the effect of the major categories of plan assets, is as follows:

Withdrawal rate effect -20%
withdrawal

rate

Valuation
Assumption

+20 %
withdrawal

rate
Total Accrued Liability 206,421 195,478 -

Interest Cost 13,496 17,970 -

219,917 213,448 -

Pension inflation effect -1 % pension
inflation

Valuation
Assumption

+1 % inflation

Total Accrued Liability 187,757 195,478 203,706

Interest Cost 17,122 17,970 18,879

204,879 213,448 222,585

The South African State Theatre
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2015 2014

Restated

PAGE 100



5. Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Mortality rate effect

-20%
mortality rate

Valuation
Assumption   

+20 %
mortality rate

Total Accrued Liability 5,443,000 5,158,000 -

Interest Cost 493,000 432,000 -

5,936,000 5,590,000 -

Medical aid inflation -1% medical
aid inflation

Valuation
Assumption   

+1 % medical
aid inflation

Total Accrued Liability 4,872,000 5,158,000 5,472,000

Interest Cost 405,000 432,000 462,000

5,277,000 5,590,000 5,934,000

6. Inventories
Stationery 98,675 85,291

FOH Liquor, refreshments and consumables 251,970 286,331

350,645 371,622

7. Receivables from exchange transactions
Trade Debtors 3,507,819 2,417,831

Provision for impairment (1,315,291) (1,366,735)

Nett Trade Debtors 2,192,528 1,051,096

Deposits 12,277 12,277

Prepayments 55,193 90,909

Operating lease receivables 22,085 46,786

Accrued Income 29,001 44,135

Other receivables 259,550 26,393

2,570,634 1,271,591
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7. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables which are past due are not automatically considered to be impaired. Management's judgement is

used to impair  amounts that are past due. At 31 March 2015,  2,173,799 (2014:  1,051,096) were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

Current: 0 -30 days 566,584 646,679

Past due: 31 - 60 days 195,152 95,888

More than 90 days 1,412,063 308,530

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 31 March 2015, trade and other receivables of  (51,444) (2014:  1,366,735) were impaired and provided for.

The amount of the provision was  (1,315,291) as of 31 March 2015 (2014: 1,366,735).

The ageing of these loans is as follows:

0 to 3 months 15,936 101,146

3 to 6 months 15,648 123,712

Over 6 months 1,283,707 1,141,877

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance 1,366,735 -

Provision for impairment (51,444) 1,366,735

1,315,291 1,366,735
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8. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 231,585 113,183

Bank balances 22,896,525 2,969,178

Deposits on call 4,146,836 13,749,397

27,274,946 16,831,758

9. Employee cost provision
Reconciliation of employee cost provision - 2015

Opening
Balance

Additions Total

Provision for leave 846,610 95,367 941,977

Reconciliation of employee cost provision - 2014
Opening
Balance

Utilised
during the

year

Total

Provision for leave 1,102,266 (255,656) 846,610

10.   Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables 1,753,941 1,538,255

Income received in advance 666,875 296,575

Accrued expense 2,350,924 2,053,169

4,771,740 3,887,999
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11.   Revenue
Sale of goods 2,020,474 2,079,439

Rendering of services 2,059,874 2,081,425

Rental of facilities and equipment 17,547,027 16,251,724

Sundry income 1,500,974 1,353,199

Interest received - investment 489,669 918,827

Advertising sponsorships 576,367 -

Other sponsorships received 1,672,712 720,000

Government grants & subsidies 65,091,578 52,235,644

90,958,675 75,640,258

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as follows:

Sale of liquor and confectionery 2,020,474 2,079,439

Income from productions 2,059,874 2,081,425

Rental from parking garage 10,053,430 8,849,480

Rental income from properties 2,728,481 2,593,028

Rental income from theatre rental 2,608,179 2,008,239

Other rental income 2,156,935 2,800,976

Other operating revenue 1,500,974 1,353,199

Interest received - investment 489,669 918,827

23,618,016 22,684,613

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows:

Advertising sponsorships 576,367 -

Other sponsorships received 1,672,712 720,000

Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 65,091,578 52,235,644

67,340,657 52,955,644
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11.   Revenue (continued)

Nature and type of services in-kind are as follows:

The South African State Theatre has a sponsorship agreement with kykNET which is considered as non-exchange transaction in-kind. The fair value of the transaction cannot be reliably determined. 
The agreement gives kykNET naming rights to the Drama Theatre and the South African State Theatre will receive in return classical airtime to be used for promotional spot. The barter agreement with 
kykNET expired on 31 October 2014

The advertising sponsorships received was in the form of advertising expenses and had no cash flow effect on revenue received

12.   Government grants and subsidies

Operating grants
DAC Operational Grant 45,028,027 42,393,000

CATHSSETA Grant 11,982 69,012

45,040,009 42,462,012

Capital grants
DAC Capital grant recognised 20,051,569 9,773,632

20,051,569 9,773,632

65,091,578 52,235,644
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13.   General expenses
Advertising 3,216,524 2,894,879

Auditors remuneration 1,501,906 1,909,225

Bank charges 210,068 210,459

Cleaning 2,679,769 2,701,330

Consulting and professional fees 1,351,456 1,025,490

Consumables 22,525 67,611

Entertainment 37,289 188,118

Fines and penalties - 56,374

Flowers 1,610 36,680

Insurance 241,392 112,594

IT expenses 8,548 20,137

Lease rentals on operating lease 262,263 199,178

Levies 128,974 140,699

Placement fees 41,659 179,515

Postage and courier 20,038 29,875

Printing and stationery 422,265 322,922

Security 4,164,647 4,108,576

Software expenses 81,384 71,404

Staff welfare 32,396 222,222

Subscriptions and membership fees 365,782 102,148

Telephone and fax 639,481 697,318

Training 141,270 194,802

Travel - local 302,157 675,121
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13.   General expenses (continued)

Electricity 6,912,123 7,614,837

Uniforms 11,877 28,134

Production costs 6,676,192 8,325,783

Sundry expenses 2,638,736 660,968

Cost of refreshments 1,275,022 1,284,093

33,387,353 34,080,492

13.1 Auditors remuneration
Internal Audit 183,587 551,289

External Audit 1,318,319 1,357,937

Sundry Expenses consist of operating expenses that are not individually material to justify separate recognition as per GRAP 1

14.   Employee related costs

Basic salaries 33,219,460 31,607,292

Workman's Compensation 96,915 184,720

Leave pay provision charge 9 95,367 -255,656

Overtime payments 1,203,393 1,108,280

Actuarial loss -298,272 609,249

Interest cost on revaluation of Medical Aid Fund and Pension Fund 449,970 337,725

34,766,833 33,591,610

15.   Investment revenue
Interest revenue
Bank 489,669 918,827
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16.   Finance costs
Interest paid on overdue accounts 20,024 1,741

Finance leases - 4,842

20,024 6,583

17.   Operating lease

The entity leases certain of its office space in terms of operating leases. The majority of leases run for 1 year inline with the entity’s financial year. There 
are no escalation rates and new contracts are signed with lessees each year.

State Theatre building
Due no later than one year 115,112 556,629

Due between 1 and 5 years - 115,116

115,112 671,745

Investment Property
Due no later than one year 381,415 474,274

Due between 1 and 5 years - 252,374

381,415 726,648

The entity leases an on hold telephone message system  with a 1 month  termination notice period and a GAAP point of sale software over a three year period.
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18.   Cash generated from operations
Surplus (deficit) 20,240,376 (7,727,536)

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 9,881,254 10,465,365

Disposal of assets 2,155,824 507,793

Fair value adjustments (10,508,755) -

Impairment deficit 283,538 -

Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities (498,505) 320,108

Movements in provisions 95,367 (255,656)

Changes in working capital:
Inventories 20,977 (48,713)

Receivables from exchange transactions (1,299,038) 857,230

Payables from exchange transactions 883,740 1,838,876

21,254,778 5,957,467

19.   Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for
• Property, plant and equipment 7,895,383 3,996,115
The commitments to property, plant and equipment comprises of the following:
• Refurbishment of staff canteen - 360,771
• Refurbishment of applause bar - 145,380
• Restaurant upgrade - 174,720
• Refurbishment of VIP Bar - 133,985
• Theatre Seats - 2,113,742
• Upgrade of Lifts 768,782 1,067,517
• Upgrade of Stage Machinery 7,126,601 -

7,895,383 3,996,115
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20.   Contingencies

A letter of demand in terms of the institution of legal proceedings against certain organs of the State Act 40 of 2002 was issued to the State Theatre by Ms. AD van der Westhuizen on 28 March 2014 for 
injury sustained in the parking on 16th September 2014. Ms AD van der Westhiuzen has claimed R400 000 for her injury sustained. The outcome of the legal proceedings is currently unknown and is still 
under investigation.

21.   Related parties

Relationships
Department Department of Arts and Culture (DAC)

Related party balances

Related party transactions

Department of Arts and Culture
Operational grants received from DAC 45,028,027 42,393,000

Capital grants received from DAC 20,051,569 9,773,632

Management fees received 60,000 -

22.   Key management compensation
Executive

2015
Basic salary Annual bonus Provident Fund Allowances Other Total

MS N Soopal (appointed 12/05/14) 557,515 50,365 81,391 62,150 - 751,421

Mr A Sekhabi 760,185 59,122 138,892 197,559 80,000 1,235,758

Mr G Viljoen 755,716 60,287 141,626 16,179 - 973,808

Dr Q Simpson (Resigned 31/07/2014) 531,679 27,782 45,238 - 406,333 1,011,032

2,605,095 197,556 407,147 275,888 486,333 3,972,019
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2014
21.   Related parties (continued)

Basic salary Annual Bonus Provident Fund Allowances Other Total
Mr A Mokoena 528,797 55,173 101,214 - 75,638 760,822

Mr A Sekhabi 686,693 56,118 131,653 63,600 12,000 950,064

Mr G Viljoen 680,746 60,369 149,440 - 12,229 902,784

Dr Q Simpson 1,003,497 82,168 133,637 - 30,000 1,249,302

2,899,733 253,828 515,944 63,600 129,867 3,862,972

* Other benefits paid to Mr Q Simpson in 2015 comprises of a lump sum benefit payable on his recognition. The amount paid to Mr A Sekhabi was for royalties on shows produced.

22.   Key management compensation 
Non-executive

2015

Member's fees Allowances Total
Dr AM Vilakazi 1,103 137 1,240

Mr S Chauke 1,104 183 1,287

Mr TK Mphuti 1,104 125 1,229

Dr VT Zulu 1,121 1,220 2,341

Ms BM Malange 1,102 - 1,102

Ms MF Mofammere 2,206 390 2,596

Ms S Singh 2,206 390 2,596

9,946 2,445 12,391
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22.   Key management compensation (continued)

2014
Members fees Allowances Total

Adv. J Ralefatane 16,708 3,514 20,222

Adv AM Motsiri 6,028 1,220 7,248

Dr. K Netshiombo 23,190 3,953 27,143

Dr. O Ntsoane 20,850 3,288 24,138

Miss. N Gallant 11,602 1,220 12,822

Mr A Bodrick 13,900 3,260 17,160

Mr H Gouvelis 12,978 900 13,878

Mr M Ngonyama 12,510 - 12,510

Mrs B Neuhoff 26,424 5,734 32,158

144,190 23,089 167,279

23.   Prior period errors

Correction of error: Post Retirement Benefits, Intangible Assets and Property, Plant & Equipment

During the current financial year management reviewed the assumptions used in the compilation of the post retirement pension benefit. It was found that there is no contractual obligation for the 
accrual of the benefit to the spouse was incorrect in the prior year. This resulted in adjustment in the valuation.

Annual software licenses was incorrectly capitalised in the prior year. This therefore result in an increase in expenses and decrease in intangible assets. The software licenses was incurred for a full 
financial year and consequently was a prepaid expense for the difference raised.

During the financial year was there also a full verification of property,plant and equipment done. Additional assets where identified and the asset register was updated accordingly.

Income received during the 2014 financial year for non-exchange services was identified as being as classified as exchange revenue. The classification as been corrected subsequently

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:
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23.   Prior period errors (continued)
Statement of financial position
Decrease in post retirement benefit - 138,601

Decrease in Intangible Assets - (118,251)

Increase in Property, Plant & Equipment - 4,058,453

Increase in Prepaid Expenses - 90,909

Increase in Accumulated Surplus - (4,543,443)

Statement of Financial Performance
Decrease in Interest Cost - (8,275)

Decrease in actuarial loss - (18,617)

Decrease in Amortisation Expense - Intangible Assets - (2,715)

Increase in Depreciation - Property, Plant & Equipment - 402,954

Increase in revenue from non-exchange - (720,000)

Decrease in revenue from exchange - 720,000

Decrease in general expense - 386

24.   Risk management
Financial risk management

The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The entity has developed a comprehensive risk strategy in terms of Treasury Regulations 28.1 in order to monitor and control these risks. Internal audit function reports quarterly to the Audit Committee, 
an independent body that monitors risks and policies to mitigate risk exposures. The risk management process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below.

Liquidity risk

The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. All 
bank accounts are held with reputable banking institutions.

The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial posi-
tion to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of 
discounting is not significant.
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24.   Risk management (continued)

Less than one year
Trade and other payables 4,104,865 3,591,424

Credit risk

Credit risk relates to potential exposure on trade receivables. At year end, the entity did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk which had not been adequately provided 
for. There is no security pledged on trade creditors and cash and cash equivalents.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument
Cash and cash equivalents 27,274,946 16,831,758

Trade receivables 2,192,528 1,051,096

Market risk
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24.   Risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk

All financial instruments attract interest at rates linked directly to the prime bank overdraft rate.

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27,274,946 16,831,758

Trade receivables from exchange transaction 2,192,528 1,051,096

29,467,474 17,882,854
Liabilities
Trade payables from exchange transactions 4,104,864 3,591,424

As the entity has no significant interest risk exposure at financial year end, the effect of 1% strengthening or weakening of the prime interest rate at balance sheet date is not considered material.

25.   Events after the reporting date

There were no adjusting events that came to the attention of council.

26.   Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 622,359 565,257

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure for the year 1,089 55,839

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure identified in the current year relating to prior year 18,935 1,263

642,383 622,359
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Incident Disciplinary steps 
taken/ criminal 

proceedings

SARS penalties and interest paid on unpaid PAYE, UIF and SDL No disciplinary - 54,098

yet, incidents

to be investigated

Interest charged on late payment No disciplinary 1,089 3,004

yet, incidents

to be investigated

Interest and penalties for late payment of workmen’s Compensation for prior years No disciplinary 18,935 -

yet, incidents

to be investigated

20,024 57,102
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27.   Irregular expenditure
Opening balance 73,667,680 5,973,331

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 16,139,127 30,475,083

Irregular expenditure identified in the current year relating to the prior year - 37,219,266

89,806,807 73,667,680

Details of irregular expenditure - current year
Disciplinary steps taken/

criminal proceedings

The following are incidents that have resulted in the irregular expenditure:

No disciplinary action has 
been taken, incidents to be 
investigated 15,814,702

- no approved purchase orders;

- procurement without obtaining the required number of quotes;

- The lowest quote not accepted;

- Procurement from suppliers over R30 000 without obtaining a valid tax clearance certificate;

- No SBD4 forms obtained from suppliers;

- No SBD 9 forms obtained form suppliers;

- The preferential  points system not correctly applied/ not applied as required by PPPFA,

HR contracts signed after commencement date. 324,425

16,139,127
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